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INTRODUCTION BY THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER 
 
It gives me great pleasure to present this report of the first quarter 
covering the period 01 April 2016 to 30 June 2016. 
 
Performance Review for the Quarter ended June 2016 
 
Core Services (Collective Bargaining Services and Dispute 
Management Services) 
 
Collective Bargaining Services: National 
 
Collective Bargaining Services: National recorded 27% for the period 
under review. This decline in performance, compared to the 100% 
achieved in the fourth quarter of the 2015/16 financial year, could be 
attributed to Parties not complying with requests for meeting dates. 
The seven objectives not achieved in the period under review were 
deferred to the second quarter of the 2016/17 financial year.   
 
A significant achievement during the period under review was the 
National PAM Workshop held on 26th April 2016, which included HR 
Practitioners from all nine Provincial Departments of Education. 
Advocacy material were also distributed to all nine provincial 
Departments of Education. Provincial training will commence in the 
second quarter of the 2016/17 financial year.  
 
Council also concluded Collective Agreement 1 of 2016: Amendment 
of Clauses 18.2 and 18.3 of the ELRC constitution on Vote Weights.  
 
Council adopted the research report on ECD, “Policy and Conditions 
of Service for the Institutionalisation of Grade R Practitioners”. In 
giving effect to the recommendations, Council will adopt a Collective 
Agreement on job descriptions for ECD Practitioners.  
 
 
 
 
 

 
Collective Bargaining Services: Provincial  
 
The performance of the provincial chambers was on par with that of 
the 2015/16 financial period. Three provinces achieved 100%, 
namely Gauteng, Mpumalanga and Western Cape. Limpopo and 
North West both achieved 89%. Northern Cape recorded 88%, 
KwaZulu-Natal 86% and Free State 85%.  
 
Eastern Cape is the only province that achieved only one objective 
on rural incentives for educators and achieved 17%.  Planned 
meetings were postponed as the Chamber was awaiting feedback 
from the Employer on their representation to task team meetings.   
 
Detailed reports of the nine chambers are attached.  
 
Dispute Management Services 
 
The Council received 189 disputes for the quarter under review. A 
total of 387 processes were conducted of which 82 were conciliations 
and 305 were arbitration processes. A total of 63 awards were 
rendered this quarter, which is 17 more than those rendered in the 
first quarter of the 2015/16. 
 
The ELRC finalised 144 matters for the period under review. There 
were 45 postponements and 45 adjournments.   
 
Cases referred to the second quarter of the 2016/17 financial 
year 
 
A total of 115 cases are to be carried over to the second quarter of 
the 2016/17 financial year.   
 
Cases from previous financial years 
 
Of the 115 carried over cases, 98 are from 2015/16 financial year and 
17 are from previous financial years. In an effort to finalise the long-
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outstanding cases, the Council is prioritising these cases by setting 
them down frequently and in some instances allocating two days for 
cases. Furthermore, where there are applications for postponement 
on long-outstanding cases, the Council refuses postponement and 
indicate to Parties that the cases have sat a number of times and 
must be concluded. 
 
Panellist Professional Development 
 
One training session for Panellists was conducted for Eastern Cape 
Commissioners at Nelson Mandela Metropolitan University in Port 
Elizabeth. The Panellists were trained on special disputes (where 
learners or children are involved either as witnesses or victims) as 
well as Guidelines on promotion disputes. The other trainings will 
take place in the second quarter.  
 
Facilitation 
 
The Council was involved in facilitation and mediation processes of a 
dispute of mutual interest in the Northern Cape which ultimately led 
to the agreement being entered into between the Provincial 
Department of Education and the union.  
 
Governance and Administration Services 
 
The Legal Sub-Committee is in the final stages of its work to amend 
the ELRC constitution. The recommendations will be presented in the 
Bargaining meeting scheduled for the second quarter.  
 
Stakeholder Relations 
 
The ELRC was the key sponsor of the Teacher Appreciation Support 
Programme (TASP) June 16 Commemoration in Alexandra on 15th 
June 2016. 
 
External Audit 
 
The External Audit commenced on 1st June 2016 and the anticipated 
completion date is the 29th July 2016. The audit execution is 60% 
complete.  

Risk Management 
 
Reporting on the implementation, co-ordination and monitoring of the 
risk management policy and programme takes place at operational 
and at Operational Risk Management Committee (ORMC) meetings 
on a quarterly basis. The strategic and operational risk registers were 
updated accordingly.  
 
The overall strategic risks before controls were rated at an average 
of 1,  which is a high priority, whereas overall risks after controls were 
rated at an average of 12, which is at a medium level. This means 
that the controls that the Council has in place are moderate, they 
partially minimise the level of risk exposure. 
 
The Operations Risk Management Committee Charter was also 
drafted during the period under review. 
 
Mobilising Employee Services 
 
Employee wellness 
 
The Council recognises that employees are the most valuable assets 
to any organisation. For this reason the Human Resources unit 
conducted a wellness programme where Virgin Active was invited to 
introduce to staff the different activities they have to keep the body 
fit. 
 
Furthermore, staff members were encouraged to utilise their annual 
leave days to ascertain a healthy work-life balance.  
 
Performance management  
Human Resources unit conducted a performance management 
workshop for the management team. This aim of the workshop was 
to assist managers to improve the process of performance 
contracting and performance appraisals. 
 
Occupational Health, Safety and Environment 
 
The Health and Safety Committee conducted a site/workplace 
inspection, the aim of this exercise was to identify potential hazards, 
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to evaluate these potential hazards and to recommend corrective 
action and to follow up on implemented recommendations. 
 
Research & Media 
 
In realising the Council’s objective to promote the corporate image of 
the ELRC, the Research and Media unit attended three events during 
the period under review as part of its advocacy campaign. 
 
Marketing material was distributed at the SADTU TVET Colloquium 
on 3rd June 2016 at Kopanong Conference Centre.  

 
The Council exhibited at the TASP June 16 Commemoration and 
distributed marketing material to the 200 delegates who attended the 
event.   
 
The unit also exhibited at Africa Education Week 2016 at Gallagher 
Estate on 29th and 30th June 2016.  
 
Information Technology 
 
IT Governance forms an integral part of the Council’s business. 
Achievement of IT Governance objectives is monitored through 
quarterly risk review meetings attended by ORMC members and 
managers. The monitoring and achievement of IT Governance 
objectives is facilitated through this forum where appropriate IT risks 
and related business objectives are attended to. 
 
The Executive Management is aware of and takes responsibility for 
IT governance in the ELRC. IT policies and standards have been 
approved by the EXCO and are implemented by Management. IT is 
a regular agenda item at Senior Management Meetings and the 
EXCO obtains annual assurance on the effectiveness of IT controls.  
IT strategic and operational risks have been identified and are 
monitored and reported at ORMC meetings.  
 
Disaster recovery is well entrenched in the ELRC’s systems, and is 
tested regularly.  
 

Disaster recovery testing was done during the reporting period to 
ensure that data and systems are recovered in the event of a virus 
attack, data loss or disaster.  
 
A server health check was also conducted to ensure that there is no 
business disruption and server downtime during work hours.  
 
Conclusion 
 
The overall performance of Council was satisfactory during the period 
under review, with Dispute Management Services and support 
services: Corporate Services and Executive Services achieving all its 
set objectives.  
 
The overall performance of Collective Bargaining, particularly 
national Collective Bargaining Services was below standard. It is 
anticipated that performance will improve in the second quarter of the 
2016/17 financial year. 
 
This report is submitted to the Registrar of Labour in terms of section 
53 of the Labour Relations Act (LRA) 66 of 1995 (as amended).  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ms. NO Foca 
General Secretary, ELRC 
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PROGRAMME 1      COLLECTIVE BARGAINING SERVICES: NATIONAL  
 
Purpose 
 
The purpose of Programme 1 is to contribute to the Council’s vision of a strengthened social contract between government, teacher unions and 
civil society that helps to create a conducive environment for improved quality in teaching and learning.  Such is done by promoting collective 
bargaining at national and provincial levels so as to ensure the development of effective policies for quality public education in a non-disruptive 
environment for teaching and learning. 
 
Sub-programmes: 

 Collective Bargaining (Provincial) 

 Research Services 

 Dispute Prevention Support Services 
 
Strategic Objectives 
 

 To facilitate bargaining on identified matters of mutual interest in public education. 

 To facilitate consultation and information on matters of policy in line with National Education Policy Act (NEPA). 

 To administer research programmes on identified issues for research on evidence based teacher welfare and national development. 

 To facilitate dispute prevention support services through providing effective administrative functions to shop stewards. 

 To provide training and advocacy on the implementation of collective agreements and policies.  
 
 
Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements 

 
Collective Bargaining Services: National 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2016/17 

Planned Target 
For 1st Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
1st Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 1st 
Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

Collective Bargaining 

Schedule bargaining 
and governance 
meetings within 14 
days from date of 
agreement 
Revised PAM 

8 of the 13 agreed 
matters of mutual 
interest in public 
education concluded 
successfully in 
bargaining meetings 

Convene one (1) 
national workshop and 
three (3) provincial 
workshops 
 

Not Achieved 
 
One (1) national 
workshop was convened 
on 26 April 2016.  
 

Three (3) provincial 
workshops. 
 
 
 

Three (3) provincial 
workshops were deferred to 
the second quarter as 
provinces were not 
submitting dates and 
venues. 
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Collective Bargaining Services: National 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2016/17 

Planned Target 
For 1st Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
1st Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 1st 
Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

To conduct training 
and advocacy on the 
Revised PAM 

 

Appointment of 
Foreign Educators 
To convene a joint 
workshop on the 
appointment of foreign 
educators 

8 of the 13 agreed 
matters of mutual 
interest in public 
education concluded 
successfully in 
bargaining meetings 
 

n/a n/a n/a   
*This is an annual target 
that only relates to the 
second quarter of the 
2016/17 financial year.  

Amendments to the 
ELRC Constitution 
Legal Sub Committee 
to table 
recommendations to 
Council. 

8 of the 13 agreed 
matters of mutual 
interest in public 
education concluded 
successfully in 
bargaining meetings 
 

To table 
recommendations to 
Council on the 
Amendments to the 
ELRC constitution in 
Bargaining meeting 

Not Achieved One (1) Bargaining meeting  The matter was deferred to 
the second quarter. 

 

EMS for Office 
Based Educators 
To table 
recommendations on 
Job descriptions 
(Circuit managers 1, 2 
and 3) to Council 

8 of the 13 agreed 
matters of mutual 
interest in public 
education concluded 
successfully in 
bargaining meetings 
 

EMS Task Team to 
table 
recommendations to 
Council in Bargaining 
meeting 

Not Achieved One (1) Bargaining meeting At the bargaining meeting 
held on 18th and 19th May 
2016, Council agreed to 
extend the timeframe for 
the task team time to come 
up with recommendations. 
The matter was deferred to 
the second quarter. 

 

Review of Collective 
Agreements 
To conclude Collective 
Agreement on 
“Transfer of Serving 
Educators in Terms of 
Operational 
Requirements” 

8 of the 13 agreed 
matters of mutual 
interest in public 
education concluded 
successfully in 
bargaining meetings 
 

To conclude Collective 
Agreement on Serving 
Educators in Terms of 
Operational 
Requirements 

Not Achieved One (1) Collective 
Agreement 
 
 

The matter was deferred to 
the second quarter of 
2016/17. 
 
CTU-ATU is to make formal 
inputs for consideration on 
the Collective Agreement. 
 

 

Appointment of 
Temporary 
Educators 
Legal Sub Committee 
to finalise draft 
Collective Agreement 
on Appointment of 
Temporary Educators 

8 of the 13 agreed 
matters of mutual 
interest in public 
education concluded 
successfully in 
bargaining meetings 
 

To table draft 
Collective Agreement 
on Appointment of 
Temporary Educators 
to Council in 
Bargaining meeting 

Not Achieved One (1) Draft Collective 
Agreement 

The draft collective 
agreement was referred 
back to the Legal sub-
committee. 
 
The matter was deferred to 
the second quarter. 
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Collective Bargaining Services: National 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2016/17 

Planned Target 
For 1st Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
1st Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 1st 
Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

(ito Section 198 of the 
Amended LRA) 

Levy Agreement 
To conclude a 
collective agreement 
on levy increase 

8 of the 13 agreed 
matters of mutual 
interest in public 
education concluded 
successfully in 
bargaining meetings 
 

n/a n/a n/a   
*This is an annual target 
that only relates to the 
second quarter of the 
2016/17 financial year. 

Revision of the Post 
Provisioning Model 
A consolidated report 
on the consultation 
process for post 
provisioning is 
available 

8 of the 13 agreed 
matters of mutual 
interest in public 
education concluded 
successfully in 
bargaining meetings 
 

To facilitate and 
convene a workshop 
to receive PPN report 

Not Achieved One (1) Workshop The Workshop was 
deferred to the second 
quarter of the 2016/17 
financial year as per the 
approved management 
plan. 

 

Incentives for 
Educators 
To review the 
Incentives policy 

8 of the 13 agreed 
matters of mutual 
interest in public 
education concluded 
successfully in 
bargaining meetings 
 

Secretariat to table a 
report on the 
implementation of 
incentive for educators 
in the provinces in 
Bargaining meeting 

Achieved 
 
The Report was tabled in 
the bargaining meeting of 
18th and 19th May 2016. 

None    

Consultation and 
information sharing 
To convene a national 
budget workshop 
 

Budget Workshop 
for provincial DoE’s 
and national (DBE 
and 9 provinces)  

Convene budget 
workshop 

Not Achieved One (1) Budget Workshop Budget workshop for 
provincial DoE’s and 
National was deferred to 
the second quarter of the 
2016/17 financial year as 
per the approved 
management plan.  

 

Management Plans 
Annually table the 
management plans for 
approval for the next 
bargaining cycle  

Table management 
plans annually 

Table management 
plans annually 

Achieved 
 
The Management Plan 
was approved in the 
Bargaining Meeting held 
on 18th and 19th  May 
2016.  
 

None    

Administer 
resources allocated 
to approved 

Conclusion of Draft 
Collective 
Agreement or 
recommendations 

Research 
commissioned and 
conducted on ECD  
 

Achieved 
 
Research report adopted 
at the Bargaining meeting 

None    
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Collective Bargaining Services: National 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2016/17 

Planned Target 
For 1st Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
1st Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 1st 
Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

research 
programmes 
Administer resources 
allocated and 
monitoring 
implementation of 
research 
recommendations 

submitted to Minister 
on standardised 
conditions of service 
for ECD 
Practitioners 
 

held on 18th and 19th May 
2016.  

 
Overview of performance for the first quarter of the 2016/17 financial year 
 
Council conducted a National PAM Workshop on 26th April 2016, which included HR Practitioners from all nine Provincial Departments of 
Education. The roll-out of the training and advocacy for all nine provinces will commence in the second quarter of the 2016/17 financial year.  
Council concluded Collective Agreement 1 of 2016: “Amendment of Clauses 18.2 and 18.3 of the ELRC Constitution “Vote Weights” in the 
Bargaining meeting held on 18th and 19th May 2016. The Management Plan for 2016/17 was adopted in the same meeting.  Council also adopted 
the Research Report, “Policy and Conditions of Service for the Institutionalisation of Grade R Practitioners”, in which the Researcher, Dr L 
Govender presented recommendations for Council to consider.  
 
Council also provided funding for the TASP, with a special focus on young teachers that coincided with the fortieth commemoration of the June 
16th youth uprising. 
 
Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance 
 
All items/ performance indicators not achieved during the first quarter have been deferred to the second quarter and all necessary logistics are 
in progress to convene meetings and workshops during the second quarter of the 2016/17 financial year, in an effort to achieve all objectives. 
 
Changes to planned targets 
 
No changes were made to planned targets.  
 
Linking performance to budget 

 



10 

 

  1st Quarter 2016/17   

Programme Name Budget 
Actual 

Expenditure 
(Over)/Under Expenditure 

 Collective Bargaining Services R’000 R’000 R’000 

National R3 416 R2 665 R751 

CBS: Provincial R845 R544 R301 

Dispute Prevention Support Services R2 000 R452 R1 548 

Governance Support Services R524 R177 R347 

Research Services R537 R13 R524 

Special Projects R125 R30 R95 

PAM R1 218 R769 R449 

Total R8 665 R4 650 R4 015 
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PROGRAMME 1.1   COLLECTIVE BARGAINING SERVICES: PROVINCIAL 
 
Purpose 
 
The purpose of the provincial chambers is to promote collective bargaining at provincial level to ensure the development of effective policies for 
quality public education in a non-disruptive environment for teaching and learning. 
 

Eastern Cape 
 

Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements 
 

Collective Bargaining Services: Eastern Cape 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2016/17 

Planned Target 
For 1st Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
1st Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 1st 
Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

Consultation, Implementation and Monitoring of  Collective Agreements and Policies 

Post Provisioning 
A report on the 
consultation process 
for post provisioning is 
available 
 
 

Reports (4) To facilitate and 
convene meetings in 
line with the ELRC 
constitution for tabling 
of reports. 
 
“Workshop on the 
indicative budget for 
post provisioning” 
“First consultation 
meeting” 

 Not Achieved 
 
 
 

One (1) Meeting 
 
One (1) Workshop 

There was no meeting 
convened for the tabling 
of reports. The workshop 
on the indicative budget 
was also not convened.  
The first consultation 
meeting also did not sit. 

 

 

Employee Wellness 
Monitor the 
introduction and 
implementation of 
Employee wellness 
activities 

Reports (4) To facilitate and 
convene meetings in 
line with the ELRC 
constitution for tabling 
of reports. 
 
“Presentation and 
analysing of reports 
on the introduced and 
implemented 
programmes” 

Not Achieved 
 
 

 
 

One (1) Meeting 
 

No meeting was called 
during the quarter as the 
Chamber was awaiting 
feedback from the 
Department with regard to 
representation in task team 
meetings. 

 

Teacher 
Development 

Reports (4) To facilitate and 
convene meetings in 
line with the ELRC 

Not Achieved 
 
 

One (1) Meeting 
 

No meeting was called 
during the quarter as the 
Chamber was awaiting 
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Collective Bargaining Services: Eastern Cape 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2016/17 

Planned Target 
For 1st Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
1st Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 1st 
Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

Monitoring reports on 
provision of teacher 
development 
programs 

constitution for tabling 
of reports. 
 
 
“A comprehensive 
report on the 
implementation of 
programmes 
presented to the 
Chamber.” 

feedback from the 
Department with regard to 
representation in task team 
meetings. 

Dispute Prevention  
Monitoring reports on 
the categories and 
status of the 
Grievances, 
Misconduct and 
disputes lodged 

Reports (4) To facilitate and 
convene meetings in 
line with the ELRC 
constitution for tabling 
of reports. 
 
“Reports on dispute 
cases.” 
 
“A workshop on 
appointments and 
promotions and 
dispute prevention.” 

Not Achieved 
 
 

One (1) Meeting 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
One (1) Workshop 
 

No meeting was called 
during the quarter as the 
Chamber was awaiting 
feedback from the 
Department with regard to 
representation in task team 
meetings. 
 
The workshop was also not 
held  

 
 
 

Rural Incentives for 
Educators 
Monitoring reports on 
the implementation of 
incentives for 
educators are 
available 
 

Reports (4) To facilitate and 
convene meetings in 
line with the ELRC 
constitution for tabling 
of reports. 
 
“Report on emanating 
from the rural 
incentives task team 
presented to the 
Chamber.” 
 
 
 
 

Achieved 
 
A meeting was held on 26th 
April 2016.  
 
A report on Rural Incentives is 
available.  

None  
 
 

 

Incremental 
Introduction of 
African Languages 

Reports (4) To facilitate and 
convene meetings in 
line with the ELRC 
constitution for tabling 
of reports” 

Not Achieved 
 

One (1) Meeting 
 

No meeting was called 
during the quarter as the 
Chamber was awaiting 
feedback from the 
Department with regard to 
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Collective Bargaining Services: Eastern Cape 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2016/17 

Planned Target 
For 1st Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
1st Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 1st 
Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

Monitoring reports on 
the introduction and 
implementation of IIAL 

 
“A report on the 
number of educators 
employed for IIAL.” 

representation in task team 
meetings. 
 

 
Overview of performance for the first quarter of the 2016/17 financial year 
 
There has been no meeting called to conclude on the distribution of posts on Post Provisioning 2016 (PPN). No final report is therefore available 
on the distribution of posts for PPN 2016. The proposed Management Plan for Post Provisioning 2016 was presented and adopted in the Chamber 
meeting of 25th January 2016. There has been no follow up meetings called for the implementation and monitoring of the Plan, as they are 
monitored by the Provincial Task Team.  
 
It must be noted that the Chamber had resolved to change the task team from the Incremental Introduction of African Languages (IIAL) to 
‘Language Policy Implementation’ as the IIAL project was viewed as limited in scope, whilst the language policy implementation was opening up 
the scope and therefore able to monitor the implementation of language policy including the IIAL project.  A report on Infrastructure Plans was 
received and submitted to the Chamber meeting.   
 
No report was received and submitted on Learner Teacher Support Material (LTSM) to schools. It must also be noted that task team meetings 
had been halted with the exception of the Rural Incentives Task Team, because the department of education was in a process of identifying 
people who would be representing the department in the task teams. 
 
A meeting with the Acting Superintendent-General and the ELRC General Secretary and Chairperson was held on 5th May 2016 to address the 
operations of the ELRC and Chamber. A follow up meeting was held on 17th May 2016 between the Acting Superintendent-General and the 
PELRC to discuss the operations of the Chamber in the Province.  
 
The meeting amongst others requested clarification on ‘Matters of Mutual Interest’ and clear definitions, so as to distinguish them from the 
administrative issues of the Department of Education. 
 
 
 
 
 



14 

 

Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance 
 
The Employer had requested that they be given space and time to deal with the challenges of non-attendance and submission of reports by the 
Employer representatives to the Task Teams. 
 
The matter has been escalated to the Head of Department who is dealing with the situation in an effort to resolve the problems.  The Employer, 
after the internal processes by the Head of Department, would then submit names of the Employer representatives to the Task Teams as a way 
of resolving the problem.   
 
A meeting between the ELRC and the Superintendent-General was held to discuss the operations between the Department of Education and 
the ELRC. A follow-up meeting was also convened to discuss the Chamber’s operations in the Province.   
 
These meetings provided clarity on the internal processes undertaken by the HOD to sort out the affairs of the Department in relation to the 
operations of the Chamber in the Province. 
 
Changes to planned targets 
 
No changes were made to planned targets.  
 
Linking performance to budget 

 
  1st Quarter 2016/17 

Programme Name Budget Actual (Over)/Under Expenditure 

Expenditure 

  

  R’000 R’000 R’000 

Collective Bargaining Services: 
Eastern Cape 

R109 R84 R25 

Total R109 R84 R25 
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Free State 
 

Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements 

 
Collective Bargaining Services: Free State 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2016/17 

Planned Target 
For 1st Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
1st Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 1st 
Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

Consultation, Implementation and Monitoring of  Collective Agreements and Policies 

Reports on 
recruitment / filling of 
posts in terms of the 
FSCA 1 of 2012 are 
available.   

Reports (4) Report on posts filled 
presented in chamber.  

Not Achieved 
 

One (1) Report Report was available but 
did not respond to the 
planned target for the 
quarter. 
 

 

Monitor the training of  
SGBs on FSCA 1 of 
2012 

Reports (4) Management  
Plan on Training 
Program of SGBs is 
presented. 

Achieved 
 
Management Plan presented 
on 9th June 2016. 
 

None    

Monitor the 
implementation of 
37% in lieu of benefits 
for educators 
employed for period 
less than six months 

Reports (4) Report on educators 
accessing 37% in lieu 
of benefits tabled and 
discussed. 

Achieved 
 
Statistical Report tabled and 
adopted on 9th June 2016. 

None    

Monitor the 
implementation of 
FSCA 1 of 2009. 

Reports (4) Report on the 
conversion of 
educators tabled 

Achieved 
 
Report tabled at Chamber 
meeting of 9th June 2016. 
 

None    

Monitor the 
implementation of 
IQMS & PMDS 

Reports (4) Report on 
performance results 
presented. 

Achieved 
 
Report presented on 9th June 
2016. 
 

None    

Monitoring the 
implementation of 
Incentives policy for 
educators.  

Reports (4) Management plan for 
incentives 
implementation is 
presented. 

Achieved  
 
Management Plan adopted on 
9th June 2016. 
 

None    

Monitoring reports on 
consultation for post 
provisioning.  

Reports (4) Report on the 
placement of 
educators tabled and 
discussed. 

Achieved 
 
Report adopted on  
9th June 2016. 

None    
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Collective Bargaining Services: Free State 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2016/17 

Planned Target 
For 1st Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
1st Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 1st 
Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

Information Sharing 

Monitoring reports on 
teacher development 
programmes. 

Reports (4) Present teacher 
developmental needs 
identified through 
IQMS and 
Management plan 

Not Achieved 
 

One (1) Report Report was presented but 
did not respond to the 
planned target for the 1st 
quarter. 

 

Monitoring reports on 
infrastructural 
development in 
schools and offices 

 Reports (2) Present areas of 
infrastructural 
development needs 
and management 
plan.  

Achieved 
 
Report adopted at chamber 
meeting of 9th June 2016. 

None    

Monitor 
implementation of 
equity targets on the 
filling of posts.  

Reports (4) Present equity targets 
in terms of the policy.  

Achieved 
 
Report adopted at chamber 
meeting of 9th June 2016. 
 

None   

Monitor 
implementation of 
PSLA, Curriculum and 
Examination.  

Reports (4) Present   Strategy on 
Learner Attainment 
programme.  

Achieved 
 
Report adopted at chamber 
meeting of 9th June 2016. 
 

None   

Monitor the 
implementation of 
Employee Health and 
Wellness Activities. 

Reports (4) Report on EHW 
activities tabled for 
discussion.  

Achieved 
Report adopted at the chamber  
meeting of 9th June 2016. 

None   

Monitoring reports on 
the categories and 
status of Grievances 
and Disputes lodged.  

Reports (4) Convene task team 
meeting on quarterly 
basis 

Achieved 
 
Dispute Prevention Task Team 
(DPTT) meeting held on 8th 
June 2016.  
 
DPTT Report adopted at 
chamber meeting of 9th June 
2016. 
 

None   
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Overview of performance for the first quarter of the 2016/17 financial year 
 
The majority of objectives have been responded to in spite of the fact that the period was characterised by disengagement on bargaining 
processes as a result of SADTU’s work-to-rule campaign.  
 
The Chamber demonstrated their commitment during the period under review, by recording significant progress in negotiation and consultation 
processes, which further escalated in the maintenance of labour peace accomplished through improved relations between Parties working 
together in addressing set targets in accordance with the Annual Performance Plan. 
 
Progress has been recorded on the implementation of Integrated Quality Management System (IQMS) and Performance Management and 
Development Scheme (PMDS) as follows: 
 

a) Training of teachers and Senior Management Team (SMT) was conducted for a total of 95 post level 1 (PL1) and 51 post level   2 - 4 
(PL2- 4) beneficiaries in Motheo and Xhariep districts.  

b)  An orientation session for student teachers who are in the last year of teacher training was presented at the University of Free State 
(UFS), focusing on the rationale for IQMS implementation; roles and responsibilities of educators in IQMS implementation; legislative 
and policy framework and instruments used as well as procedures and processes for IQMS implementation.   

c) Monitoring and support visits took place in some of the districts and with regard to implementation of IQMS outcomes on PERSAL, the 
system has been prepared for 1% pay progression from July 2016. 

d) Summative evaluation outcomes 2015 was registered with Provincial Treasury on 9th May 2016. 
e) Levels of compliance towards conclusion of the 2015/16 PMDS cycle as at May 2016, out of 105 Head Office and 558 District Offices 

OBE reflected:  
 436 for 1st Quarterly Reviews; 424 for 2nd Quarterly Reviews; 469 for 3rd Quarterly Reviews; 475 for 4th Quarterly 

Reviews and 481 Annual end-of-cycle assessment. 
 Implementation of pay progression would be from August 2016, backdated to 1st July 2016 in compliance with the policy. 

 
The report on the appointment of educators reflected 379 temporary educators against promotional posts, 267 Ad-hoc posts; 115 IIAL; 690 
temporary educators on substantive posts; 146 Funza Lushaka as well as departmental bursary holders and 421 PL1 - 3 educators having been 
placed as at 13th May 2016.   
 
Progress was also recorded on the implementation of Employee Health and Wellness programmes and a detailed report on the implementation 
of Provincial Strategy on Learner Attainment, Curriculum and Assessment was presented and welcomed by Parties. 
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Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance 
 
Parties resolved that reports on Recruitment /Filling of Post in terms of FSCA 1/2012 and Teacher Development should be revised to respond to 
the performance indicators and planned targets. Both reports will be presented at the next Chamber meeting in line with the approved Annual 
Performance Plan for 2016/17. 
 
 
Changes to planned target 
 
No changes were made to planned targets.  
 
Linking performance to budget 

  
  1st Quarter 2016/17   

Programme Name Budget Actual (Over)/Under 
Expenditure Expenditure 

  

  R’000 R’000 R’000 

Collective Bargaining Services: Free State  R86 R63 R23 

Total R86 R63 R23 
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Gauteng 
 

Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements 

 

 
Collective Bargaining Services: Gauteng 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2016/17 

Planned Target 
For 1st Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
1st Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 1st 
Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

Information Sharing 

Strategic Planning 
Workshop 
To conclude Chamber 
Programmes and 
budget for the 
succeeding Financial 
Year 

Conclude 
budget aligned 
to the 
Chamber’s 
Programmes 

n/a n/a n/a   
*This is an annual target 
that only relates to the 
third quarter of the 
2016/17 financial year. 

Teacher 
Development 
Monitoring reports on 
provision of teacher 
development 
programs 

Reports (2) To facilitate and 
convene meetings in 
line with the ELRC 
constitution for tabling 
of reports, focusing on 
programs for Teacher 
Development 

Achieved 
 
-Special Chamber of 29th April 
2016 ratified further additional 
developmental training for 
educators. 
- The training included the Just 
In Time, Cipelt and Sisilt.  
 

None   

Dispute Prevention: 
Monitoring reports on 
the categories and 
status of the 
Grievances, 
Misconduct and 
disputes lodged 

Reports (4) Convene a task team 
meeting. Receive 
reports on the 
categories and status 
of grievances 

Achieved 
 
The Dispute Prevention Task 
Team convened on 10th June 
2016. It continued to assess 
the impact of interventions 
geared at reducing cases 
reported and referred.  

None   

Consultation, Implementation and Monitoring of  Collective Agreements 

Post Provisioning 
A consolidated report 
on the consultation 
process for post 
provisioning is 
available 

Reports (4)  To facilitate and 
convene one meeting 
in line with the ELRC 
constitution for tabling 
of reports (MTEF) 
 
 

Achieved 
 
The MTEF workshop was 
convened on 20th May 2016 
and the Chamber adopted the 
MTEF report on 14th June 
2016. 
. Posts increased from 58 513 
to 60 0036. Propelled by a 

None   



20 

 

Collective Bargaining Services: Gauteng 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2016/17 

Planned Target 
For 1st Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
1st Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 1st 
Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

learner increase of 200 000. 
The budget was at R39 billion. 
Personnel expenditure was at 
R19-billion.  
 

Implementation of 
Collective 
Agreements  
i) IQMS 
ii) PMDS 
To monitor the 
evaluation of 
educators in terms of 
the performance 
managements system 
 

PMDS= 90%   
IQMS= 90% 

PMDS- Report of the 
number of PMDS 
employees we have 
contracted as well as 
identified needs. 
(90%). 
 
 IQMS- First 
development cycle 
 
 

Achieved 
 
IQMS: 
Of the 58 328 educators, 
39 008 will receive pay 
progression due to them by 1st 
July 2016. 
 
19 320 educators do not 
qualify reasons varying from 
scores with valid reasons, rank 
date and appointment. 67% 
qualifies. 
 
PMDS: 
Out of the 1 737 office based 
employees, 1 526 will receive 
pay progression due to them 
by 1st July 2016. 
 
The report was received on 6th 
June 2016 and ratified in the 
Chamber of 14th June 2016. 
 

None   

Temporary 
Educators 
To monitor the extent 
of utilisation of 
temporary educators 
and a reduction 
through absorption. 

Utilisation of 
temporary 
educators 
report.  

Temporary educators 
utilised maximally and 
effectively. Report and 
the extend of the 
utilisation of 
temporary educators 
is submitted  
Reduction in the pool 
of temporary 
educators 

Achieved 
 
The Employer tabled a report 
on the utilisation of temporary 
educators on 10th June 2016.  
There are 3 937 temporary 
educators in the department 
who qualify to be absorbed.  
 
Only 1 649 were absorbed as 
of the end of May 2016. 
 

None   
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Collective Bargaining Services: Gauteng 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2016/17 

Planned Target 
For 1st Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
1st Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 1st 
Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

The Employer shall work to 
absorb the remaining number 
as per CA 1 of 2014. 

Employee Wellness 
Monitor the 
introduction and 
implementation of 
Employee wellness 
activities 
 
 

Facilitate and 
convene 
meetings in line 
with the ELRC 
constitution for 
tabling of 
reports 

Facilitate and convene 
meetings in line with 
the ELRC constitution 
for tabling of reports 

Achieved 
 
The Employer, in the meeting 
held on 6th June 2016, tabled a 
progress report and an Annual 
Plan for the period ahead. 
 
The reports were ratified in the 
Chamber held on 14th June 
2016. 

None   

 
Overview of performance for the first quarter of the 2016/17 financial year 

 
The Chamber has in the period under review attended to all areas espoused in the Annual Performance Plan for 2016/17. It is critical to state 
that this was made possible by the level of trust and maturity that resides amongst members in the Chamber. 
 
The Chamber has created space to engage on matters speaking to the MTEF. In the workshop class size emerged as an imperative  issue. 
Parties, especially labour concurred that it inhibits progress registered in our drive to achieve and maintain public quality education. The Chamber 
in adopting the MTEF (Medium Term Expenditure Framework) Workshop Report admitted the Province alone could not bring a resolve, but that 
numerous struggles must be wedged at National level aimed at removing the Peter Morkel Post Provisioning Model. In spite of the challenges, 
the Chamber resolved to convene a Colloquium to respond to issues within its mandate. 

 
Teacher Development is another area that preoccupied the Gauteng Chamber in the first quarter. The Chamber that sat on 4th December 2015 
adopted a Teacher Development Training Schedule, but it had to keep on discussing the matter as the Employer kept on bringing new topics in 
the training schedule and Districts emerged with training initiatives not endorsed in Chamber. The Chamber remains hopeful that the meeting of 
14th June 2016 has finally laid the matter to rest. However, we must equally indicate the overzealousness on the part of the Employer in seeking 
to empower educators in the Province. 
 
Dispute Prevention: The Province is in the process of awaiting a response on a Draft Collective Agreement on the Recruitment and Placement 
Procedures of School Based Educators. Parties are unanimous that the envisaged operation of the Collective Agreement in question will help 
reduce disputes related to promotional posts. Equally, Chamber is grappling with the application of a Circular on Management of Discipline by 
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Managers and Principals. The circular in question is aimed primarily at actualising aspects speaking to progressive discipline as enunciated in 
Schedule 8 of the Labour Relations Act, as amended. 
 
Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance 
 
Not applicable.  
 
Changes to planned targets 
 
No changes were made to planned targets.  
 
Linking performance to budget 

 
  1st Quarter 2016/17 

Programme Name Budget Actual (Over)/Under 
Expenditure 

Expenditure 

  

  R’000 R’000 R’000 

Collective Bargaining Services: Gauteng R95 R77 R18 

Total R95 R77 
 

R18 
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KwaZulu-Natal 
 

Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements 

 
Collective Bargaining Services: KwaZulu-Natal 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2016/17 

Planned Target 
For 1st Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
1st Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 1st 
Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

Consultation, Implementation and Monitoring of  Collective Agreements and Policies 

Post Provisioning 
A consolidated report 
on the consultation 
process for post 
provisioning is 
available 

 Workshop (1) 
 
Meetings (4)  

Facilitate and convene 
an Indicative Budget 
Workshop for Parties  

Achieved 
 
Indicative Budget Workshop 
was held on 15th June 2016.  
  

None    

Incentives for 
Educators 
Monitoring reports on 
the implementation of 
incentives for 
educators are 
available 

Workshop (1) 
 
Meetings (3)  

Workshop on Policy 
and Provincial 
Collective  
Agreement: Payment 
of Incentive  

Achieved 
 
Incentives workshop was held 
on 27th June 2016.  

None    

Employee Health 
and Wellness 
Monitor the 
introduction and 
implementation of 
Employee wellness 
activities 

Meetings (4)  Report received by 
Chamber : Roll-out of 
Employee wellness 
programmes 

Achieved 
 
Report presented and adopted 
at Chamber meeting held on 
29th June 2016.   

None    

Teacher 
Development 
Monitoring reports on 
provision of teacher 
development 
programs 

Meetings (4)  Report received by 
Chamber – 
Identification of 
Teacher Development 
programmes 

Achieved 
 

Report presented and adopted 
at Chamber meeting on held 
on 29th June 2016.  

None    

Dispute Prevention  
Monitoring reports on 
the categories and 
status of the 
Grievances, 
Misconduct and 
disputes lodged 

Meetings (4)  
Workshop (1) 

Report received by 
Chamber : 
(i) Monitoring and 
analysis of Grievance, 
Misconduct and 
Dispute  Statistical 
information received 
(ii) Consider 
recommendations on 

Achieved 
  
Report presented and adopted 
at Chamber meeting held on 
29th  June 2016.  

None    
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Collective Bargaining Services: KwaZulu-Natal 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2016/17 

Planned Target 
For 1st Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
1st Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 1st 
Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

other matters dealt 
with by Task Team  

Multi-term 
Agreement 
2016/2019 
To facilitate the 
staffing of schools in a 
manner that ensures 
stability in Education 

Formulation of 
multi-term 
agreement 
(2016-2019)  
 
 

Formulation of multi-
term agreement 
(2016-2019)  
 
 

Not Achieved 
 
 

One (1) Multi-Term 
Agreement 

A Report was presented in 
the Chamber meeting on 
29th June 2016. It was 
noted that whilst Parties 
were not able to conclude 
the Multi-term Agreement 
(MTA) during the first 
quarter, but that they 
remained committed to 
conclude a MTA, albeit with 
a new base year being 
2017. The MTA will 
therefore remain as an item 
for discussion at Chamber. 
 
The Multi-term agreement 
was not concluded in the 
first quarter.  

 

World Teachers’ Day 
celebrations (05 
October 2016)  
Facilitate and convene 
preparatory meetings 
for Parties to host 
celebrations 
 

Meetings (2)  
 
World 
Teachers’ Day 
celebration (1) 

n/a  n/a n/a   
*This is a bi-annual target 
that only relates to the 
second and third quarters 
of the 2016/17 financial 
year. 

Early Childhood 
Development  

 Awaiting 
report from 
National to 
assist in 
developing  
this APP  

Meetings (4)  1 Meeting  Achieved 
 
Report presented and adopted 
at Chamber meeting held on 
29th June 2016.  

None    
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Overview of performance for the first quarter of the 2016/17 financial year 
 
The performance of the KZN Chamber during the period under review was satisfactory. Apart from not concluding a Multi-term Agreement to 
regulate the annual identification and movement of surplus educators, all other pre-determined objectives for this quarter were met.  
 
Other Chamber activities conducted during 1st Quarter:    
 
A Special Chamber meeting was held on 3rd and 7th June 2016 to formulate and adopt a School-Based Promotion Bulletin (HRM 28 of 2016). A 
Special Chamber meeting was held on 15th June 2016 to formulate and adopt the Guidelines to Conduct Sifting, Shortlisting and Interviews of 
School Based Management Posts (HRM 30 of 2016). The Dispute Prevention Task Team has been mandated by Chamber to formulate a Dispute 
Prevention Strategy. The Task Team commenced its work which remains in progress.  
 
A Provincial Task Team Workshop was held on 23rd June 2016 to roll out the Bulletin on school based Management Posts under cover of HRM 
28 of 2016. The workshop also dealt with the accompanying Management Plan and the Guidelines document released under cover of 30 of 
2016. 
 
Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance 
 
The decision by Parties to formulate and implement a three year Multi-Term Agreement had been informed by the need to facilitate the staffing 
of schools in the KZN Province, in a manner that ensured stability in education.  
 
The Parties could not conclude a Multi-Term Agreement (2016/2019) during the first quarter as had been planned. However, a progress report 
was presented and accepted at the Chamber meeting held on 29th June 2016.  The Parties will continue with deliberations during the second 
quarter. Should an agreement be concluded during the second quarter or beyond, it may mean that the base year for implementation would have 
to move from 2016 to 2017.  
 
Changes to planned targets 
 
No changes were made to planned targets.  
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Linking performance to budget 

 
  1st Quarter 2016/17   

Programme Name Budget Actual (Over)/Under 
Expenditure Expenditure 

  

  R’000 R’000 R’000 

Collective Bargaining Services: KwaZulu-Natal R112 R44 R68 

Total R112 R44 R68 
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Limpopo 
 

Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements 

 
Collective Bargaining Services: Limpopo 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2016/17 

Planned Target 
For 1st Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
1st Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 1st 
Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

Consultation, Implementation and Monitoring of  Collective Agreements and Policies 

Post Provisioning 
Monitoring reports on 
the process for 
schools post 
provisioning  

A workshop on 
the indicative 
budget for the 
2017 PPN and 
three reports 
are tabled in 
chamber 

Convene a workshop 
on the indicative 
budget for the 2017 
PPN.  

Not Achieved One (1) Workshop The Employer party was not 
ready with the workshop on 
the indicative budget for the 
2017 PPN. 
 
There will be continued 
communication with the 
Employer party to urge 
them to assist chamber in 
achieving the set target. 
 

 

Incentivised posts 
Monitoring reports on 
the implementation of 
incentives for 
educators are 
available 

monitoring the 
implementation 
of the policy on 
incentivised 
posts 

Report on the 
payment of incentives 
to qualifying schools 
and erroneously 
excluded educators is 
tabled and discussed 
by parties. 

Achieved 
 
The report was tabled on 21st 
June 2016.  

None   

Employee Wellness 
Monitor the 
introduction and 
implementation of 
Employee wellness 
activities 

Monitoring of 
the 
implementation 
of Employee 
wellness 
programs  

Monitoring of the 
implementation of 
Employee wellness 
programs 

Achieved 
 
The report was tabled on 25th 
May 2016.  

None   

Dispute Prevention  
Monitoring reports on 
the categories and 
status of the 
Grievances, 
Misconduct and 
disputes lodged 

Monitoring 
report on 
analysed 
grievances, 
disputes and 
misconduct 
cases 

Receive and analyse 
reports on misconduct 
cases and categories 
of grievances and 
disputes 

Achieved 
 
The report was tabled on 22nd 
June 2016.  

None   

Educators’ 
performance 
management  

Monitoring and 
analysing the 
implementation 
of Educators’ 

Monitor and analyse 
reports on the 
implementation of 
performance 

Achieved 
 
The report was tabled on 10th 

June 2016.  

None   
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Collective Bargaining Services: Limpopo 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2016/17 

Planned Target 
For 1st Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
1st Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 1st 
Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

Monitor the 
implementation of 
performance 
management 
instruments and 
policies 

performance 
management 
tools and 
policies  

management 
instruments and 
policies. 

Curriculum and 
examinations 
Monitor the 
implementation of the 
curriculum policy and 
the management of 
examinations 

 
Monitoring and 
analysing 
reports on the 
implementation 
of examinations 
and curriculum 
policies 

 
Monitoring and 
analysing reports on 
the management of 
the examinations and 
the curriculum policies 

Achieved 
 
The report was tabled on 26th 
April 2016.  

None   

School Safety 
Monitor the 
implementation of 
schools safety 
programs 

Monitor and 
analyse reports 
on the 
implementation 
of schools 
safety 
programmes 

Monitor and analyse 
reports on the 
implementation of 
schools safety 
programmes 

Achieved 
 
The report was presented on 
10th June 2016.  

None   

Merging of schools 
Monitor the process of 
merging of small and 
non-viable schools 

Receive and 
analyse reports 
on the process 
of merging of 
schools 

Receive and analyse 
reports on the process 
of merging of schools 

Achieved 
 
The report was presented on 
21st June 2016.  

None   

PILIR 
Monitoring reports on 
progress made in the 
processing of PILIR 
referrals 

Receive and 
analyse reports 
on the 
processing of 
PILIR referrals 

Reports on the 
processing of PILIR 
referrals tabled and 
discussed 

Achieved 
 
The report was presented on 
21st June 2016.  

None   

 
Overview of performance for the first quarter of the 2016/17 financial year 

 
The Dispute Prevention Task Team meeting was held on 22nd June 2016.  One workshop was held on the Performance Management and 
development Scheme (PMDS) and its implementation. 
 
Monitoring of employee wellness programs indicated that: 

(i) 1940 employees were reached on the “No smoking day”; 
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(ii) 396 employees were reached during the observation of the STI and condom days at six sites; 
(iii)  60 wellness requests were attended to; 
(iv)  405 educators were provided with HIV Counselling and Testing (HCT); 
(v) 900 employees participated in organized and monitored activities to promote physical wellness through the sports tournament and Fun 
day; 
(vi) 1106 Employees were reached through medical screenings; 
(vii)  Three workplace audits were performed with regards to occupational health and safety; 
(viii) 7 sites were monitored on the implementation of waste management at Lebowakgomo and Sekhukhune districts; 
(ix)  Four Workplaces were audited with regards to the Occupational Health and Safety act; 
(x) Monitoring of the implementation of waste management was done at five sites; 
(xi) 93 injuries and diseases on duty victims were also attended to. 

 
Additional achievements 
 
Chamber went on to monitor additional objectives and the following were observed: 
 
Fundza Lushaka 
 
Of the 444 beneficiaries of Funza Lushaka bursaries, nine beneficiaries have not completed their studies, 12 were appointed in other provinces 
and three were untraceable. A total of 420 beneficiaries were eligible for appointment as teachers. Notwithstanding the above, only 355 were 
successfully placed by the Limpopo Department of Education (LDoE). These educators will bring new energies to the department and reduce 
the shortage of educators in various learning areas in the Province. 
 
The filling of vacancy lists 
 
There was progress in the filling of promotional posts advertised in the 2012, 2013 and 2014 vacancy lists. Chamber also monitored the 
implementation of the management plan for the filling of the 2016 vacancy list. 
 
Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance:  
 
The Chamber will continue to communicate with the Employer party to urge them to assist Chamber to achieve the set targets on Post 
Provisioning.  
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Changes to planned targets 
 
No changes were made to planned targets.  
 
Linking performance to budget 

 
  1st Quarter 2016/17   

Programme Name Budget Actual 
Expenditure 

  

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure 

  R’000 R’000 R’000 

Collective Bargaining Services: 
Limpopo 

R93 R59 R34 

Total R93 R59 R34 
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Mpumalanga 
 

Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements 

 
Collective Bargaining Services: Mpumalanga 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2016/17 

Planned Target 
For 1st Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
1st Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 1st 
Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

Consultation, Implementation and Monitoring of  Collective Agreements and Policies 

Post Provisioning 

A  report on the 

consultation process 

for post provisioning is 

available 

 

Reports (4) Workshop on the 

indicative budget for 

post provisioning 

conducted. 

 

Achieved 
 
Workshop on the indicative 
budget for post provisioning 
conducted on 8th June 2016.  
 

None  
 

 

Employee Wellness 

Monitor the 

introduction and 

implementation of 

Employee wellness 

activities 

 

Reports (4) Presentation on 

introduced and 

implemented wellness 

programs 

 

Achieved 
 
Presentation on introduced 
and implemented wellness 
programs.  
 
Task Team meeting on 
Employee Health and 
Wellness was held on 2nd June 
2016.  

None  
 

 

Teacher 

Development 

Monitoring reports on 

provisioning of teacher 

development 

programs 

 

Reports (2) Relevant identified 

teacher development 

programs are 

presented. 

  

 

Achieved  
 
Relevant identified teacher 
developmental programs were 
presented. 
 
Task Team meeting on 
Teacher Education and 
Development (TED), and 
Development Skills (DS) was 
held on 30th June 2016.  
 

None   

Incentives for  

Educators 

 Monitoring reports on 

the implementation of 

incentives for 

Reports (4) Workshop on 

incentive for 

Educator’s 

policy/criteria 

 

Achieved 
 
Workshop on incentives for 
educator’s policy/criteria is 
conducted. 
 

None   
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Collective Bargaining Services: Mpumalanga 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2016/17 

Planned Target 
For 1st Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
1st Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 1st 
Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

educators are 

available. 

 

On 18th May 2016, a Task 
Team meeting was held on IT, 
CA and DP.  The Indicative 
Budget Workshop was held on 
8th June 2016.  
 
 

Dispute Prevention 

Monitoring reports on 

the categories of 

Grievances, 

Misconduct and 

dispute lodged 

 

Reports (4) Convene a task team 

meeting on quarterly 

basis 

 

Achieved 
 
A Task Team meeting was 
held on 18th May 2016 on  
Incentives for teachers, 
Collective Agreement and 
Dispute prevention.  
 

None  
 

 

Collective 
Agreements (IQMS & 
PMDS) 
To monitor the 
implementation of 
collective agreements 
 

Reports (4) Reports on the 
evaluation of 
educators and 
capturing of scores 
received and 
analysed.  

 

Achieved  
 
A Task Team meeting was 
held on 30th May 2016 on TED; 
development skills and 
curriculum.  
 
 

None 
 

 
 

 

Inclusive Education 
(LSEN) 
To monitor the 
implementation of 
Inclusive Education 
Policy 
 

Reports (4) Reports received and 
endorsed by chamber 

 

Achieved 
 
A Task Team meeting on 
Inclusive/ Learners with 
Special Education Needs 
(LSEN) Education was held on 
25th May 2016.  
 
 
 

None 
 

 
 

 

Early Childhood 
Development(ECD) 
To monitor the 
provisioning of ECD in 
the Province 
 

Reports (4) Progress Report on 
the provisioning of 
ECD received and 
analysed 

  

 

Achieved 
 
A Progress Report on the 
provisioning of Early Childhood 
Development (ECD) was 
received and analysed in the 
Chamber meeting held on 29th 
June 2016. 
 

None  
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Collective Bargaining Services: Mpumalanga 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2016/17 

Planned Target 
For 1st Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
1st Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 1st 
Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

 
 
 
 
 

Employment Equity. 
To monitor the 
improvement in the 
achievement of equity 
targets. 
 

Reports (4) Progress reports on 
equity targets 
received and analysed 
 
Equity targets improve 
 

Achieved  
 
 
A Task Team meeting on 
Employment Equity was held 
on 7th June 2016.  
 

None 
 

 
 
 

 

 
Overview of performance for the first quarter of the 2016/17 financial year 

 
The Indicative Budget allocated the Post Provisioning Norms R19, 348,868 (with 72% for personnel and 28% none personnel), and R136, 646, 
00 and R8 million respectively for the Skills Development and Incentives for Educators. 
 
In addition, the Parties agreed to use the teaching of Maths in Grade 12 in the Comprehensive Rural Development Programme (CRDP) as a 
criterion (Policy) through which educators are to be incentivised for the 2016 Financial Year. 
 
The Task Team on Dispute Prevention noted that there is a high number of educators charged for doing business with the State without 
authorisation, and that there is inconsistency in the passing of sanctions for similar cases and agreed to conduct a workshop on the Public 
Administration Management Act (PAMA) and convene a joint forum to help mitigate the challenges. 
 
In monitoring the implementation of the Collective Agreements on the Integrated Quality Management System (IQMS), the report recorded that 
23 000 educators have been successfully evaluated for the Summative Evaluation during the quarter under review. 
 
Under Inclusive Education, the Task Team discussed and accepted the reports on the implementation of the South African Sign Language, 
Curriculum for Skills and Vocational Subjects and the Draft Document on Norms and Standards. 
 
The Parties were able to share information on programs for the Teacher Development, Employee Wellness, Employment Equity and 
Learners with Special Educational Needs as follows: 
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 There are 33 developmental programs which will benefit 12,876 educators during the 2016/17 financial year, and that educators and 
principals are increasingly participating in the Continued Professional Teacher Development (CPTD) signup Programme. In addition, an 
implementation plan for the workshop on the Professional Ethics for Educators has been developed and accepted; and 

 The Employee Wellness Programme conducted 12 awareness sessions for 23 400 educators, attended to 12 cases for 127 educators 
and commemorated a Sexual Transmitted Infections (STI)/Condom Day, which was attended by 89 educators. A total of 96 cases for 
the Policy and Procedure on Incapacity Leave and Ill health Retirement (PILIR) was finalised. 

 
Additional Achievements: 

 

 The Chamber was able to record additional achievements as reflected below: 

 The Parties were updated on great progress achieved on the implementation of Collective Agreement 1 of 2014, which recorded that 
514 of 651 educators in addition to their staff establishment have been successfully matched and placed. 

 In addition, the Parties were updated on the positive progress on the implementation of programs for the School Sports, 
Professionalisation of Grade R Practitioners, Public Examination, Early Childhood Development and the Incremental Introduction of 
African Languages. 

 The Chamber was consulted and accepted the introduction of programs on the School Electronic Reporting System (SERS), Electronic 
Recruitment and the Early Grade Reading. 

 A successful workshop on the new amendments enacted on the Pension Tax Laws was conducted by the Government Employee 
Pension Fund. 

 
 
Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance 
 
Not applicable.  
 
Changes to planned targets 
 
No changes were made to planned targets.  
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Linking performance to budget 

 
  1st Quarter 2016/17   

Programme Name Budget Actual (Over)/Under 
Expenditure 

Expenditure 

  

  R’000 R’000 R’000 

Collective Bargaining Services: Mpumalanga R66 R40 R26 

Total R66 R40 R26 
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North West  
 

Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements 

 
Collective Bargaining Services: North West 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2016/17 

Planned Target 
For 1st Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
1st Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 1st 
Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

Consultation, Implementation and Monitoring of  Collective Agreements and Policies 

Post Provisioning 
A consolidated report 
on the consultation 
process for post 
provisioning is 
available 
 
 

Reports (3) Workshop on the 
indicative budget for 
post provisioning 
(1) 

Achieved 
 
The Employer conducted a 
workshop on the budget for 
2016/17 on 7th June 2016. 

None  

 

  

Employee Wellness 
The number of 
Employee wellness 
activities introduced 
and implemented 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Reports (4) A report on 
programmes that the 
Employer have 
implemented. 
 
 

Achieved 
 
The Chamber meeting of 22nd 
June 2016 received a 
presentation on the Employee 
Wellness Programmes. 

None   

 

 

 

Teacher 
Development 
Monitoring reports on 
provision of teacher 
development 
programs 

Reports (4) Programmes on 
teacher development 
presented and 
received by Chamber  
 

Achieved 
 
A report on Teacher 
Development was received by 
the Chamber meeting of 22nd 
June 2016.  

None    

Dispute Prevention  
Monitoring reports on 
the categories and 
status of the 
Grievances and 
Disputes lodged 

Reports (4) Statistical report 
(national and 
provincial) discussed 
at quarterly meetings 
of Task Team and 
presented to Chamber 

Achieved 
 
The Chamber meeting of 30th 
June 2016 received a report 
that was discussed at the Task 
Team meeting on 14th June 
2016. 

None   
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Collective Bargaining Services: North West 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2016/17 

Planned Target 
For 1st Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
1st Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 1st 
Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

Terminations 
(contract expiry; 
resignations; 
retirements; 
deceased and 
dismissals) 
Consolidated reports 
on the category of 
terminations is 
available 

Reports (4) Analytical reports on 
the category of 
terminations 
presented and 
received by Chamber 

Achieved  
 
The Chamber meeting of 22nd 
June 2016 analysed and 
accepted the report on 
category of terminations. 

None  

 

  

QLTC 
Sharing information on 
progress made in 
relation to QLTC 
activities 

Reports (4) Information received 
and analysed by 
Chamber 

Achieved  
 
A presentation on the QLTC 
was received by the Chamber 
meeting on 22nd June 2016.  
 

None  

 

  

IQMS/PMDS 
Consolidated report 
on assessed and paid 
employees is available 

Reports (2) N/A (Implementation 
process) 

n/a (Implementation process)    
*This is a bi-annual target 
that only relates to the 
second and fourth 
quarters of the 2016/17 
financial year. 
 

Temporary 
Educators 
Monitoring the 
implementation of 
Collective Agreement 
on Temporary 
Educators 

Reports (2) Statistical report of 
temporary educators 
received and analysed 
by Chamber 

Achieved 
 
The Report on temporary 
educators was received and 
analysed by the Chamber 
meeting on 30th June 2016.  

None  

 

  

Advertisement and 
Filling of Posts 
Sharing information on 
the advertisement and 
filling of posts 
 
 
 
 

Reports (2) Statistical report on 
advertisement of 
posts presented and 
analysed by Chamber 

Achieved  
 
A Report was presented and 
accepted by the Chamber 
meeting on 30th June 2016.  
 

None  

 

  

Rationalisation of 
Schools 

Reports (2)  n/a (Implementation process) n/a   
*This is a bi-annual target 
that only relates to the 
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Collective Bargaining Services: North West 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2016/17 

Planned Target 
For 1st Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
1st Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 1st 
Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

Consolidated report 
on merging of schools 
and phasing out of 
middle schools is 
available. 

second and fourth 
quarters of the 2016/17 
financial year. 
 

Incentives for 
Educators 
Monitoring reports on 
the implementation of 
incentives for 
educators are 
available 

Reports (4) Workshop on 
Incentives for 
Educators’ Policy 

Not achieved  One (1) Workshop The Employer at the 
Chamber Meeting on 22nd 
June 2016 indicated that 
this objective is not 
budgeted for. 

 

 
Overview of performance for the first quarter of the 2016/17 financial year 
 
On 24th May 2016, the Chamber convened a Special STANCO meeting aimed at analysing the 2016/17 Annual Performance Plan (APP) and 
budget. The meeting also discussed and adopted the report flowing from the Strategic Planning Workshop held on 17th and 18th March 2016 and 
endorsed the agenda items meant for the Chamber meeting earmarked for 22nd June 2016. 
 
The Task Team meeting assigned to receive and analyse the reports on disputes and grievances sat on 14th June 2016, and a consolidated 
report emanating from such reports was presented at the adjourned Chamber meeting of the 30th June 2016. 
 
Apart from the activities processed at the adjourned Chamber of 30th June 2016, the meeting was able to discuss and adopt the minutes of the 
previous Chamber meetings of 11th and 22nd March 2016. The MTEF minutes of 7th June 2016 was also ratified.  The Strategic Planning report, 
which was adopted by the Special STANCO meeting on 24th May 2016 was also noted and the 2016/17 APP was adopted.   
 
During the period under review, the Chamber participated in activities convened by the Quality Learning and Teaching Campaign (QLTC) and 
National Education Collaboration Trust (NECT). Such activities sought to ensure that the programmes intending to guarantee the quality 
education within the North West Province, are intensified, realised and sustained. 
 
Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance 
 
The Employer indicated that the standardised objective on Incentives for Educators is not budgeted for in the 2016/17 financial year.  
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Changes to planned targets 
 
No changes were made to planned targets.  
 
Linking performance to budget 

 
  1st Quarter 2016/17   

Programme Name Budget Actual (Over)/Under 
Expenditure 

Expenditure 

  

  R’000 R’000 R’000 

Collective Bargaining Services: North 
West 

R66 R37 R29 

Total R66 R37 R29 
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Northern Cape 
 

Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements 

 
Collective Bargaining Services: Northern Cape 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2016/17 

Planned Target 
For 1st Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
1st Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 1st 
Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

Consultation, Implementation and Monitoring of  Collective Agreements and Policies 

Post Provisioning 

A consolidated report 

on the consultation 

process for post 

provisioning is made 

available 

 

Reports (4) Workshop on the 

indicative budget for 

post provisioning. 

 

Not Achieved 
 
The meeting was convened on 
23rd June 2016 and the 
Employer did not attend, the 
Employer however submitted 
the report on 30th June 2016. 

One (1) Workshop A workshop on indicative 
budget for post provisioning 
meeting was scheduled for 
11th of May 2016, the 
Employer requested that 
the said meeting be 
postponed to 23rd June 
2016. The meeting was 
rescheduled for 23rd as per 
the Employer`s request and 
all the Parties were notified 
on time but the Employer 
did not attend the meeting 
nor did they inform the 
office that they would not be 
able to attend. 

 

Incentives for 

Educators 

Monitoring reports on 

the implementation of 

incentives for 

educators are 

available 

Reports (4) Report on the 

implementation of 

incentives for 

educators for 2016/17. 

Achieved 
 
The meeting was convened on 
26th May 2016 wherein a report 
was presented by the 
Employer. 

None   

Employee Wellness 

Planning and 

Monitoring reports on 

implementation of 

employee wellness 

activities 

 

Reports (4) A report on 

programmes that the 

Employer have 

implemented.  

 

 

Achieved 
 
The meeting was convened on 
28th June 2016 wherein a 
report was presented by the 
Employer. 

None   

Teacher 

Development 

Reports (2) Report on 

implementation of 

Achieved 
 
The meeting was convened on 
22nd June 2016 wherein a 

None   
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Collective Bargaining Services: Northern Cape 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2016/17 

Planned Target 
For 1st Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
1st Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 1st 
Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

Monitoring reports on 

provision of teacher 

development 

programs 

teacher development 

programmes.  

 

report was presented by the 
Employer. 

Dispute Prevention 

Monitoring reports on 

the categories and 

status of the 

Grievances, 

Misconduct and 

disputes lodged. 

Reports (4) A task team meeting 

convened to discuss 

and update Chamber 

on the types of 

disputes and 

grievances handled.  

Achieved 
 
The meeting was convened on 
28th June 2016 wherein a 
report was presented by the 
Employer. 

None   

IQMS/PMDS 

Consolidated report 

on assessed and paid 

employees is made 

available 

Reports (2)  n/a n/a   
*This is a bi-annual target 
that only relates to the 
second and fourth 
quarters of the 2016/17 
financial year. 
 

Temporary 

Educators & 

Conversion 

Consolidated report 

on the appointment of 

temporary educators 

& conversions of 

temporary educators 

Reports (3) A report on the 

monitoring of the 

appointment of 

temporary teachers & 

conversion of 

temporary educators. 

Achieved 
 
The meeting was convened on 
17th May 2016 wherein a report 
was presented by the 
Employer. 

None   

Advertisement and 

Filling of Posts 

Sharing information on 

the advertisement and 

filling of posts. 

Reports (2) Statistical report on 

filling of posts 

presented and 

analysed by Chamber.  

Achieved 
 
The meeting was convened on 
17th May 2016 wherein a report 
was presented by the 
Employer. 
 

None   

Curriculum and 

examinations 

Monitor the 

implementation of the 

curriculum policy and 

the examinations. 

Reports (4) Report on the 

implementation of the 

curriculum and exams 

programmes.  

Achieved 
 
The meeting was convened on 
22nd June 2016 wherein a 
report was presented by the 
Employer. 

None   
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Overview of performance for the first quarter of the 2016/17 financial year 
 
This report briefly reflects on activities held during the period under review. The Chamber was able to achieve its standardised provincial 
objectives as identified in the performance plan apart from the one objective identified as non- achieved. The Chamber also adheres to the 
ELRC’s constitutional obligations. The Chamber was also able to monitor a number of programmes that had been identified for the first quarter 
and to build towards the implementation of those programmes.  
 
Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance 
 
As a remedial action, the workshop on the indicative budget for post provisioning that was rescheduled for 22nd June 2016 upon the Employer`s 
request, in which the Employer subsequently failed to attend in spite of the Employer’s request for postponement, has been re-scheduled for  7th  
July 2016. 
 
Changes to planned targets 
 
No changes were made to planned targets. 
 
Linking performance to budget 
 

  1st Quarter 2016/17   

Programme Name Budget Actual (Over)/Under 
Expenditure 

Expenditure 

  

  R’000 R’000 R’000 

Collective Bargaining Services: Northern 
Cape 

R107 R78 R29 

Total R107 R78 R29 
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Western Cape 
 

Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements 

 
Collective Bargaining Services: Western Cape 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2016/17 

Planned Target 
For 1st Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
1st Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 1st 
Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

Consultation, Implementation and Monitoring of  Collective Agreements and Policies 

Post Provisioning 
A consolidated report 
on the consultation 
process for post 
provisioning is 
available 

Consultation 
concluded and 
staff 
establishment 
issued by 30 
Sept 

Preparatory meeting 
on post provisioning 
by end of June  

Achieved 
 
A preparatory meeting on post 
provisioning was held on 2nd  
June 2016 

None    

Dispute Prevention  
Monitoring reports on 
the categories and 
status of the 
Grievances, 
Misconduct and 
disputes lodged 

Dispute 
Prevention 
Strategy 
developed and 
adopted  
 
Report on the 
Implementation 
of the Dispute 
Prevention 
Strategy  

Reports received and 
analysed by Dispute 
Prevention task team  
 
Workshop on dispute 
prevention strategy & 
DP Strategy 
developed before the 
end of June 

Achieved 
 
A Dispute Prevention task team 
meeting was held on 12th April 
2016 and reports were 
analysed. 
 
A Workshop was held on 26th  
May 2016, the development of 
a prevention strategy is still 
work in progress.  
 

None    

Universalisation of 
Grade R  
To monitor and 
receive reports on the  
implementation of the 
policy to universalise 
Grade R by 2019 

Presentation of 
the four 
quarterly 
reports on the 
matter 

Progress reports 
received on matters 
relating to Grade R 
which includes but not 
limited to : 

1. Payment 
method 

2. Training & 
Professional 
Developme
nt 

3. Curriculum 
developmen
t 

4. Conditions 
of Service 

Achieved 
 
An ECD Forum meeting was 
held on 7th June 2016 and 
reports on Grade-R matters 
were tabled and discussed.  

None    
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Collective Bargaining Services: Western Cape 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2016/17 

Planned Target 
For 1st Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
1st Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 1st 
Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

5. Learners 
with 
disability 

6. Statistical 
report on 
supply and 
demand, 
etc. 

Assault (Corporal 
punishment) 

Strategy in 
place 

Workshop and 
meeting to plan for an 
advocacy campaign 
attempting to 
eliminate the  
incidents of corporal 
punishment  

Achieved 
 
A workshop was held on 26th  
May 2016 and planning for an 
advocacy campaign took place 
and a circular was developed. 
The Employer is currently 
conducting roadshows to 
emphasise the matters agreed 
on.  
 
Employee Parties have also 
distributed the same 
information to their 
constituencies. 
 

None    

Safety at Schools  Monitoring the 
implementation 
of the Safety at 
Schools 
strategy 
 
Report on the 
Implementation 
of Strategy 

Workshop and/or 
training on managing 
safety and security in 
schools 

Achieved 
 
Training on the National Safe 
Schools Framework was 
conducted on 31st  May 2016 
by the Employer.  

None    

 

Overview of performance for the first quarter of the 2016/17 financial year 
 
Labour harmony has been preserved through mutual indulgence between the Employer and the Employee Parties. This was manifested in the 
consistent assemblies and discussions held over the period under review. Task Team meetings and a Chamber meeting were arranged to 
manage these processes in line with the ELRC’s constitution and other policy documents. Collective Agreements signed at National and Common 
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Understandings reached in the Chamber were successfully implemented by the Employer and monitoring of such policies and Collective 
Agreements are scrutinised in the Chamber meetings. 
 
The Employer is constantly giving training on the Integrated Quality Management System (IQMS) and Whole Schools Evaluation (WSE) to new 
entrants in the system. WSE mainly focusses on the School Self Evaluation (SSE) process and the School Improvement Plan (SIP) processes. 
Regular reports have been submitted to the IQMS task team and Chamber regarding the strengths and weaknesses identified.  On firmness from 
the employee parties on how WSE is used to see improvement in schools, a WSE Recommendations Tracking system has been develop and is 
in its implementation stage.  A report has been tabled at the last IQMS task team meeting on progress made as well as in the Chamber meeting 
of 15 June 2016. Due to the commitment displayed by all Parties at all times monitoring of decisions can be done resoundingly in task team 
meetings and follow-ups on outstanding matters are normally addressed in the Chamber meeting. This section of the report will be dealt in two 
parts. The first section will be concentrating on the identified performance indicators and the second section will be dealing with the 
aforementioned reports the Chamber was able to discuss, recommend and monitored processes as it unfolded.   
 
Post Provisioning: As identified at the Strategic Planning workshop on 10th and 11th March 2016, a preparatory meeting was held on 2nd June 
2016.  The purpose of this meeting was twofold: To take stock of the status on developments regarding the processes and commitments made 
during the previous financial year and secondly, afforded stakeholders in education the opportunity to direct discussions towards the upcoming 
Medium Term Expenditure Framework (MTEF) period to raise matters of mutual interest to the Employer for consideration.   
 
Dispute Prevention and Corporal Punishment/Assault: As identified at the Strategic Planning workshop on 10th and 11th March 2016, a 
preparatory planning meeting for the envisaged workshop was held on 12th April 2016. Parties agreed that a dispute prevention and corporal 
punishment workshop should be held on the same day, as both issues end up mostly at a dispute level. The workshop took place on 26th  May 
2016 and was very productive. The Western Cape Education Department (WCED) agreed that the circular should be revised; the short term 
solution to be implemented: Advocacy to schools and road shows, which will start in June, July and August 2016 to different District Offices; draft 
a new circular to be sent out and have a joint way forward in terms of this process. The labour relation officers at the district offices should be 
utilised to deal with grievances in order to resolve a matter speedily and to adhere to timeframes. 
 
Safety at Schools: In line with the identified performance indicator at the Strategic Planning workshop on 10th  and 11th March 2016, a safety at 
schools task team meeting was held on 17th May 2016.  The purpose of this meeting was to address the envisaged objective for the quarter.  
Parties acknowledged that there is a need to remind the School Governing Bodies (SGB’s) and schools of the responsibilities of all stakeholders 
in ensuring the safety of schools, in line with relevant legislation. Hence Parties agreed that a circular on safety at schools should re-issued to all 
institutions and stakeholders. WCED also issued written invitations to the Safety at Schools Task Team members of the PELRC to attend the 
training session on the National Safe Schools Framework (NSSF), which took place on 31st May 2016 as well as the dates of the two-day NSSF 
workshops that will be conducted within the province. Further discussions will take place at the next task team meeting to ensure that the gained 
momentum does not get lost. 
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Universalisation of Grade-R:  The National policy on the Universalization of Grade-R by 2019 was included in the Annual Performance Plan of 
the 2016/2017 financial year. This is to ensure that the matters raised at previous Chamber meetings pertaining to Grade-R, would be addressed 
to realise quality public education for all Grade-R practitioners in the province.  The Early Childhood Development (ECD) forum, with special 
focus on Grade-R met on 7th June 2016. The employer party has given a presentation which included among others, but not limited to, ECD 
sector birth to four years, inter-sectoral relationship, role of education, number of Grade-Rs in Public Ordinary and Independent Schools and the 
number of schools with Grade-R and all the other issues related to ECD and Grade-R. 
 
Employment Equity: Employment Equity Consultative Forum (EECF) meetings are held on a quarterly basis to present the progress made on 
Employment Equity (EE) targets. The EECF also serves as a platform where EE challenges are discussed and addressed.  The main items 
discussed at the meeting were disability update and EECF terms of reference. The EE scores were compiled and provided to the Chief 
Directorate: Districts, as well as the Directorate: Recruitment and Selection for further dissemination.  Employee Parties raised the question why 
they should further participate in this forum if the Employer was not implementing the set employment equity. 
 
Skills Development: Quarterly monitoring reports and expenditure reports were compiled and submitted to the Public Sector Training Authority 
(PSETA). The PSETA’s Workplace Skills Plan (WSP) 2016/2017 was submitted on 28th April 2016. The Skills Development Committee (SDC) 
meeting was held on 14th April 2016 for Districts and programme Managers to report on training delivered in the fourth quarter (December 2015 
– 31 March 2016) and for the sign-off of the 2016/2017 WSP. Public Service Bursaries for in-service personnel in the fourth quarter was R238 
360.90; the total spend to date is R406 786.70. Graduate Internship Programme spending in the fourth quarter was R213 302. 46 and the total 
spent to date is R948 443.58. A total of 17 interns were appointed in the financial year; eight left the programme during the year and have up 
employment in the public and private sectors. Pre-Service Educator Bursaries had no intakes for 2015; the fourth quarter expenditure was R40 
000.  The total spent to date is R 1 540 000.00. Currently, there are 51 people who are still part of the bursary scheme which will be finalised in 
2016. 
 
National Teaching Awards (NTA): A provincial Steering Committee meeting was held where Districts and Unions were informed of the 
Department of Basic Education’s (DBEs) proposed changes for 2016, as well as discussing the draft provincial management plan, district plans 
and the 2016 budget. The proposed changes include using the IQMS Performance Standards as criteria for adjudication. In the NTA DBE review 
meeting of 23rd May 2016, the possible changes were discussed and it was agreed on the following: 
 

 2015 criteria will be strengthened and used for 2016; 

 Alternate Further Education and Training (FET) categories (Mathematics and Physical Science will be included for 2016); 

 IQMS Performance Standards will primarily not be used as NTA criteria; 

 DBE will develop a rubric for scoring/adjudication using some of the IQMS descriptions as per the IQMS scoring guide 

 E-Copies of the nomination guide would be available by 10th June 2016; 

 Hard copies will be delivered to Provincial Education Departments (PED) by end June 2016; WCED will forward hard copies of the 
guide to schools during the June/July school holidays.  
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The provincial adjudication training workshop was held on 9th June 2016, with individual follow-up sessions at cluster level; cluster adjudication 
will take place from 4th to 17th August 2016. Provincial adjudication is scheduled to take place from 1st to 26th September 2016. The closing date 
for nominations is 2nd August 2016 and the provincial awards might be on 4th November 2016, pending approval. 
 
Integrated Quality Management System (IQMS): With regard to performance ratings, it has been reported that over the last six years scores 
have become more realistic; the percentage of under-performance is not correlated to the other performance ratings. On the implementation 
levels for a four year provincial overview it has been reported that the compliance levels are consistently high. Non-compliance is being more 
effectively managed resulting in a steady decline. Under-performance appears to be too low; the number of principals not teaching has increased 
and there is significant reduction in the late submission of summative scores. 
 
Whole School Evaluation (WSE): WSE has been conducted at 57 schools from April to June 2016 across eight education districts at the 
following types of schools: eight high schools, 43 Primary schools, two Intermediate schools, three Independent schools and one Special school.  
Urgent findings are escalated on an on-going basis to EXCO and the relevant Chief Directorates for follow-up action. The fourth quarter report 
was submitted to the Department of Basic Education (DBE) in May 2016 and the findings are based on the visits in February and March 2016. 
Strengths in functional schools were among others: appropriate systems and procedures were in place for effective school administration, 
educators use various strategies to enhance effective and efficient classroom management and methodologies, schools have created effective 
structures and procedures to ensure a safe environment for teaching and learning and schools promote stakeholder involvement through 
excellent communication strategies with local communities and institutions to mention but a few; some of the weaknesses identified at under-
performing schools were: measures to improve the attendance rate of learners are inconsistent and ineffective; schools offer few extra-curricular 
activities and school-based support teams do not fully monitor the implementation of the array of intervention strategies at many of the schools; 
the annual WSE report for 2015/2016 is based on visits to 142 schools from April 2015 to March 2016 and will be submitted to the DBE in June 
2016. 
 
WSE Recommendations Implementation Tracking Report: The tracking report provides an overview on the status of the interventions 
implemented at school and district levels to address the findings of WS reports. The period covered July to November 2016, but it should be 
noted that the implementation of recommendations and follow-up is a continuous process. Two factors which have impacted on the report should 
be noted namely; the WCED re-aligned district boundaries in line with DBE district policy, which means that some schools have shifted circuits 
and districts and secondly, the appointment of Circuit Managers resulted in slight delays. Districts facilitated hand-over processes internally and 
other support and intervention measures. The number of schools reported on was 139; schools and officials listed a total of 718 WSE 
recommendations as key priorities for the 139 schools reported on. Of the 718, officials reported satisfactory progress for 319 and excellent 
progress for 141 key recommendations. This represents a progress rate of 63.8% as reported. A total of 42 cases reported no progress; of the 
42 instances eight recommendations relate to infrastructural issues which require intervention. 
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Employee Health and Wellness: Health and Wellness days were held at Alexander Sinton on 4th March 2016 and Fairway Primary school on 
17th March 2016. Awareness was raised on topics such as created World Leprosy and Healthy eating. Activities based on operational plans are 
group trauma incidents conducted at two schools. The table below gives a summary of the types of services utilised by WCED employees. 
 
Types of services 
    

Services category Services utilised  Current % 
Professional counselling Telephone counselling 62.0% 
Face-to-face   38.0% 
Legal   57.3% 
Information  12.2% 
Life Management Family care  19.7% 
Financial  10.8% 
Referral Services Formal referral 87.8% 
Assisted referral   12.2% 
Managerial Services  Managerial Counselling 99.4% 
Managerial Coaching   0.0% 

 
A Summary of the top five psycho-social issues employees experienced during the annual reporting period: 
   

Psycho-social issues  Cases attended  
Stress  16.4% 
Relationship issues  13.9% 
Organisational Issues  13.8% 
Information and Resources  7.9% 
Human Resource Issues 7.7% 

 
Transformation and Restructuring: The WCED has 211 excess educators at Public Ordinary Schools (POS) and Special Schools as at 31st  
March 2016. A total of 174 educators have been declared in excess and 37 are still to be declared in excess. The WCED monitors the placement 
of excess educators on a monthly basis and provides the list of excess educators not yet placed to district offices. A total of 334 out of the 676 
Funza Lushaka Bursary Holders (FLBH) qualified for placement as at 31st March 2016. Included are School Governing Body (SGB) placements 
as per DBE’s reporting norms; monitoring of Funza Lushaka is done on a monthly basis and communicates the status of placements and provide 
a list of non-placements to district offices. The table below outlines the placement of bursary holders. 
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Placement of Bursary Holders 
 
Year of Graduation: 2015 
    

Employment status Number of FLBH placed  % Placed 
Permanent 115 17% 
Temporary 208 31% 
School Governing Bodies 11 2% 

  
Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance 
 
Not applicable.  
 
Changes to planned targets 
 
No changes were made to planned targets.  
 
Linking performance to budget 

 
  1st Quarter 2016/17   

Programme Name Budget Actual (Over)/Under Expenditure 

Expenditure 

  

  R’000 R’000 R’000 

Collective Bargaining Services: Western 
Cape 

R107 R57 R50 

Total R107 R57 R50 
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PROGRAMME 2 DISPUTE MANAGEMENT SERVICES  
 
Purpose 
 
The purpose of Programme 2 is to manage disputes proactively. This includes prevention of disputes by defusing conflicts that can disrupt 
teaching and learning and it also includes dispute resolution. Professional development and training is included in Programme 2 to ensure that 
Dispute Resolution Practitioners and Panellists operate effectively. Particular emphasis is placed on training that helps to protect the rights of 
children involved in special disputes. 
 
Sub-programmes 

 Conciliation and pre-arbitration services 

 Arbitration services 

 Training of Dispute Resolution Practitioners and/or Negotiators 

 Professional Training and Development of Panellists  

 Quality control of awards and rulings 
 
Strategic Objectives 

 To provide efficient dispute resolution services. 

 To ensure quality over arbitration awards. 

 To provide Professional Development to Panellists.  

 
Dispute Management Services 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2016/17 

Planned Target 
For 1st Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
1st Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 1st 
Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

Provision of dispute resolution services 

To schedule cases in 
jurisdiction for 
conciliation within 30 
days after receipt of 
referral 

To schedule 80% 
of cases in 
jurisdiction for 
conciliation within 
30 days after 
receipt of referral 

 
 

80% 

Achieved 
 
90% 
 
84 
 
Out of 93 cases received, 84 
were conciliated within 30 
days. 

None   
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Dispute Management Services 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2016/17 

Planned Target 
For 1st Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
1st Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 1st 
Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

To schedule cases for 
arbitration within 45 
days after receipt of 
referral 
 

80% of cases 
scheduled within 
45 days after 
receipt of referral 

 
 

80% 

Achieved 
 
96% 
 
44 
 
Out of 46 cases which were 
arbitrated, 44 were arbitrated 
within 45 days. 
 

None   

Quality Control (QC) 
done in all arbitration 
awards concluded 
during the financial 
year 

Quality Control 
(QC) done of all 
arbitration 
awards 
concluded during 
the financial year  

 
 

100% 

Achieved 
 
100% 
 
All 63 arbitration awards 
received were quality 
controlled. 
 

None   

Facilitate session for 
professional 
development of 
Panellists 

Two training 
sessions 
conducted 
annually for 
Panellists  

 
 
- 

Achieved 
 
1 training session was 
conducted.  

+1 One session was 
conducted in Port Elizabeth 
for the period under review.  

 

 
The Council continues to minimise frivolous requests for postponements, as well as reduce the high number of adjournments by enforcing Clause 
55 of the ELRC constitution. It has been noted that there has been an increase in requests for postponements by some Provinces in all disputes 
scheduled during school holidays. This impacts negatively on the turn-around times for conciliations and arbitration processes, thus affecting the 
performance section. The Council also encourages Panellists to enforce clause 64.7 of the ELRC constitution in an effort to discourage 
inadequate preparation for hearings and requests for postponement.    
 
In hearings where a child is a victim or a witness, the Council continues to ensure that appropriate venues are booked for these special hearings, 
e.g. Magistrate Court, Children’s Court or Teddy Bear Clinic (Johannesburg) and Department of Social Development in Free State and Northern 
Cape. The Council will also ensure that Intermediaries are appointed to protect the rights of the child, as stipulated in Section 28 of the 
Constitution, “The Right of the child is of paramount importance in all matters concerning the child”. The Council has also embarked on a 
recruitment process to add interpreters to assist where required. The Council also plans to recruit more intermediaries in the new financial year.   
As a way of improving efficiencies, the Council continues to enforce compliance by ensuring that Panellists submit arbitration awards to the 
Council within 14 days of the conclusion of arbitration proceedings, in terms of clause 25.8 of the ELRC constitution.   
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The majority of disputes referred to the Council are on unfair labour practice related to promotions and appointments and dismissals. In a bid to 
address these disputes, the Council continues to rely on the Dispute Prevention Task Teams to resolve these areas of concern. The Council has 
committed to assist the Provincial District Prevention Task Teams by providing them with statistics on disputes which are referred each month, 
so that they can develop some intervention strategies to resolve and finalise grievances. 
 
Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance 
 
Not applicable.  

 
Changes to planned targets 
 
No changes were made to planned targets.  
 
Linking performance to budget 
 

  1st Quarter 2016/17   

Programme Name Budget 
Actual 

Expenditure 
(Over)/Under 
Expenditure 

Dispute Management Services R’000 R’000 R’000 

Dispute Resolution Services R3 065 R2 091 R974 

Dispute Prevention Services R131 R40 R91 

Professional Development & Training Services R54 R9 R45 

Further Education Training Colleges - - - 

Total R3 250 R2 140 R1 110 
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ANNEXURE A: DISPUTE MANAGEMENT SERVICES 

 
 Dispute Management Services: Basic Education 
 Dispute Management Services: Higher Education and Training (FETC) 
 Training of Dispute Resolution Practitioners 
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Overview of performance for the first quarter of the 2016/17 financial year 

 
The ELRC received a total of 189 disputes during the period under review. This marks a decrease of 35 cases as compared to the first quarter 
of 2015/16 financial year, where 224 disputes were received. Of the 189 disputes received, 97 (51%) were “In jurisdiction” and 92 (49%) were 
found to be “Out of Jurisdiction”. 
 

Disputes referred by Province 
 

GP KZN WC EC NW LP MP NC FS NAT TOTAL 

39 35 27 24 19 18 10 9 8 0 189 

 
For the period under review, the Gauteng Province was the highest referring province at 39. This was followed by Kwazulu-Natal at 35, while 
Western Cape referred 27 cases. Eastern Cape referred 24, North West 19, Limpopo 18, Mpumalanga 10 and Northern Cape referred nine 
cases. The lowest referring Province is Northern Cape with eight cases. 
 

  



55 

 

Disputes referred by nature: 01 April to 30 June 2016      

          

Provinces ULP Promo/App Other ULP 
Unfair 
Dismissal 

Special 
dismissal 
related to 
abuse of 
learners 

BCEA Clause 
23 

Interpretation 
of Collective 
Agreements 

Unilateral 
Change to 
Terms and 
Conditions 

Mutual 
Interest Total 

EC 10 08 4 0 1 1 0 0 24 

GP 5 9 22 0 1 2 0 0 39 

FS 0 2 3 0 0 3 0 0 8 

LP 5 7 5 0 1 0 0 0 18 

MP 3 2 3 0 0 2 0 0 10 

NW 5 6 5 0 2 1 0 0 19 

NC 6 0 1 0 1 0 0 1 9 

WC 3 9 8 0 0 7 0 0 27 

KZN 12 13 6 0 2 2 0 0 35 

NAT 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 49 56 57 0 8 18 0 1 189 
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Of the 189 disputes that were referred, 49 related to ULP-Promotion and Appointments, 56 to Other Unfair Labour Practice, 57 to Alleged Unfair 
Dismissal, 18 were Interpretation of Collective Agreements, eight were BCEA disputes and one dispute related to matters of mutual interest. 
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Provinces 
ULP 
Promo/App Other ULP 

Unfair 
Dismissal 

Disputes 
related to 
abuse of 
learners BCEA  

Interpretation 
of Collective 
Agreements 

Unilateral 
Change to 
Terms and 
Conditions 

Mutual 
Interest Total 

EC 6 6 2 0 1 1 0 0 16 

GP 3 5 11 0 1 2 0 0 22 

FS 0 2 0 0 0 2 0 0 4 

LP 1 4 3 0 0 0 0 0 8 

MP 2 1 2 0 0 1 0 0 6 

NW 2 4 2 0 1 0 0 0 9 

NC 1 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 3 

WC 2 4 5 0 0 7 0 0 18 

KZN 1 6 2 0 1 1 0 0 11 

NAT 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 18 32 28 0 5 14 0 0 97 

          

Of the 189 disputes that were received, 97 were In Jurisdiction. Of the 97 that were “in jurisdiction”, 18 related to ULP – Promotion and 
Appointments, 32 related to Other Unfair Labour Practice , 28 related to Unfair dismissals, five related to BCEA and 14 related to Interpretation 
of Collective Agreements. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

In Jurisdiction as per nature: 01 April to 30 June 2016 
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Provinces 
ULP 
Promo/App Other ULP 

Unfair 
Dismissal 

Disputes 
related to 
abuse of 
learners BCEA  

Interpretation 
of Collective 
Agreements 

Unilateral 
Change to 
Terms and 
Conditions 

Mutual 
Interest Total 

EC 4 2 2 0 0 0 0 0 8 

GP 2 4 11 0 0 0 0 0 17 

FS 0 0 3 0 0 1 0 0 4 

LP 4 3 2 0 1 0 0 0 10 

MP 1 1 1 0 0 1 0 0 4 

NW 3 2 3 0 1 1 0 0 10 

NC 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 6 

WC 1 5 3 0 0 0 0 0 9 

KZN 11 7 4 0 1 1 0 0 24 

NAT 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 31 24 29 0 3 4 0 1 92 

          

Out of the 92 disputes found to be out of jurisdiction, 31 related to ULP- Promotion and Appointments, 24 were other ULP’s, 29 related to Unfair 
Dismissals, three related to BCEA, four were Enforcements and one was a mutual interest dispute. It must be noted that the substantive amount 
of disputes that were screened as out of jurisdiction, were due to defective and incomplete referrals, including those that were referred outside 
time-frames and condonation was not granted. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Out of Jurisdiction as per nature: 01 April to 30 June 2016 
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Processes conducted: 01 April to 30 June 2016 

    

Provinces 
Conciliation/Pre 
Arbitration Arbitration Total 

KZN 8 56 64 

GP 26 62 88 

FS 4 26 30 

EC 11 53 64 

WC 16 46 62 

NC 1 7 8 

MP 4 9 13 

NW 4 20 24 

LP 8 26 34 

NAT 0 0 0 

Total 82 305 387 

    

A total of 387 events were conducted for the period under review. Of these 82 were conciliations and 305 were arbitration events.  Ordinarily 
each conciliation is concluded in a single event. Arbitrations are often conducted more than once, depending on the complexity of each dispute. 
The number of events conducted for the period under review were more than the events conducted in the first quarter of the 2015/16 financial 
year. A total of 286 events were conducted in the first quarter of the 2015/2016 financial year. 
 

 

      

          

Province 
Withdrawn 
Conc.  Settled Conc.  

Withdrawn 
Arb.  

Dismissed 
Arb.  Settled Arb.  Award Rulings 

Special 
Awards Total 

KZN 1 1 1 0 4 9 4 0 20 

GP 3 1 4 2 2 6 2 6 26 

FS 2 0 1 0 0 4 1 0 8 

EC 2 2 4 1 3 12 6 0 30 

WC 0 2 2 2 3 7 7 0 23 

Disputes finalised by outcome: 01 April to 30 June 2016 
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NC 0 0 0 1 1 1 1 0 4 

MP 2 1 3 0 0 1 4 0 11 

NW 1 0 2 0 2 3 2 1 11 

LP 0 0 0 2 3 3 3 0 11 

NAT 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 11 7 17 8 18 46 30 7 144 

          

The ELRC finalised 144 disputes during the period under review.  A total of 46 arbitration awards were rendered, as well as seven special award 
involving a learner. A total of 18 disputes were settled at arbitration, while seven was settled at conciliation. Withdrawn disputes amounted to a 
total of 28, with 11 withdrawn at conciliation and 17 withdrawn at arbitration. Eight cases were dismissed at arbitration and 30 rulings were handed 
down in the period under review. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A total of 303 disputes were scheduled for arbitration in the period under review. Of these, 48 are for the current financial year, 223 are for the 
2015/16 financial year and 32 emanate from previous financial years. 

 
 

   

         

Province 2016/2017 2015/2016 2014/2015 2013/2014 2012/2013 2011/2012 2010/2011 Total 

KZN 6 39 1 1 0 2 0 49 

FS 0 17 2 0 0 0 0 19 

EC 7 43 6 1 0 0 0 57 

GP 15 39 9 0 0 0 0 63 

WC 8 34 1 2 0 0 0 45 

NC 0 5 2 0 0 0 0 7 

NW 5 16 1 1 0 0 0 23 

LP 6 26 0 0 0 0 0 32 

MP 1 4 3 0 0 0 0 8 

Total 48 223 25 5 0 2 0 303 

         

Arbitrations heard in the period: 01 April to 30 June 2016 
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A total of 115 cases from previous financial years are to be carried over to the second quarter of the 2016/17 financial year. Of these 98 are for 
the 2015/16 financial year, while 17 cases are from previous years and remain unresolved. 
 

Postponement and adjournments:  01 April to 30 June 2016 

Provinces Postponements Adjournments Total 

KZN 2 4 6 

FS 1 6 7 

WC 7 14 21 

NC 2 0 2 

EC 10 3 13 

GP 11 2 13 

NW 9 0 9 

MP 0 1 1 

LP 3 15 18 

Total 45 45 90 

 
A total of 45 cases were postponed for the period under review and 45 adjournments took place. 
 

  

    
  

Province 2015/2016 2014/2015 2013/2014 2011/2012 Total 

KZN 27 0 2 
1 

30 

FS 11 0 0 
0 

11 

EC 15 2 1 
0 

18 

GP 15 4 0 
0 

19 

WC 10 0 1 
0 

11 

NC 3 2 0 
0 

5 

NW 6 0 1 
0 

7 

LP 9 1 0 
0 

10 

MP 2 2 0 
0 

4 

Total 98 11 5 1 115 
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2.1 DISPUTE MANAGEMENT SERVICES – HIGHER EDUCATION AND TRAINING 
(TVET) 

 

2.1.1   Cases referred for the period: 01 April to 30 June 2016 
 
During the period under review, a total of 29 TVET disputes were referred to the ELRC. Of these 21 were found to be jurisdictional, eight were 
out of jurisdiction. 

 
 

No of Referrals In Jurisdiction Out of Jurisdiction 

29 21 8 

 
 
2.1.2 Disputes referred by Nature 
 
The ELRC received a total of 29 disputes in the TVET Sector. Of these one related to Promotion and Appointment, 10 related to Other Unfair 
Labour Practice, 13 related to Unfair Dismissals, one related to BCEA and four related to application and interpretation of collective agreement.  
 

ULP-Prom/App Other-ULP Dismissals BCEA Application/Interpretation Total 

1 10 13 1 4 29 

 
2.1.3 Events/Processes Conducted 
 
During the period under review a total of 53 events/processes were conducted as follows: 
 

Conciliation/Pre Arbitration Arbitration Total 

19 34 53 
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2.1.4     Dispute Outcomes 
 
During the period under review 14 cases were finalised. Two cases were withdrawn at conciliations and one was withdrawn at arbitration. One 
case was settled at arbitration, two were settled at conciliation. Six arbitration awards were rendered. 
 

 
 
 

 
2.1.5   Arbitrations from previous financial years heard in the first quarter 
 
During the period under review, 26 arbitrations were conducted for the 2016/17 financial year while 19 cases related to 2015/16 financial year. 
 

2016/2017 2015/2016 2013/2014 2012/2013 2011/2012 20102011 TOTAL 

26 19 0 0 0 0 45 

 
2.1.6     Postponements and adjournments 
 
During the period under review there were three postponements and one adjournment. 
 

Postponement Adjournments Total 

3 1 4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Withdrawn 
Conc 

Dismissed 
Conc 

Settled 
Conc 

Withdrawn 
Arb 

Dismissed 
Arb 

Settled 
Arb 

Award Ruling TOTAL 

2 0 2 1 0 1 6 2 14 
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2.2 TRAINING OF DISPUTE RESOLUTION PRACTITIONERS AND PANELLISTS 
 

2.2.1. PANELLISTS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
 
The Council has successfully conducted one professional development for Panellists on 24 and 25 June 2016 at Port Elizabeth, NMMU, for 
Eastern Cape Commissioners. 
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PROGRAMME 3 CORPORATE SERVICES 
 
Purpose 
 
The purpose of Programme 3 is to provide support services to the core operational functions of the Council, to ensure that it delivers an efficient 
and effective service on its mandates.   
 
Sub-programmes: 

 Mobilising Employee Services 

 Communication Services 

 Information Technology (IT) 
 
Strategic Objectives 
 

 To professionalise the ELRC by investing in human capital 

 To promote the corporate image of the ELRC 

 To ensure the continuous availability, reliability, effectiveness and efficiency of ICT systems 
 

Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements 
 

Corporate Services 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2016/17 

Planned Target 
For 1st Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
1st Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 1st 
Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

30 employees to 
participate in Human 
development 
programmes matching 
entity requirements 

30 employees 
to participate in 
Human 
development 
programmes 
matching entity 
requirements 

8 Achieved 
 
11 
 
All 11 Managers were 
workshopped on Performance 
Management.  
 

+3 This was due to the 
Performance Management 
Workshop that all managers 
attended. 

 

Number of employee 
wellness programmes 
conducted 
 
 
 

6 employee 
wellness 
programmes 
during the 
financial year 
 

1 Achieved 
 
1  
 
A wellness programme took 
place on 10th June 2016.  

None   
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Corporate Services 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2016/17 

Planned Target 
For 1st Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
1st Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 1st 
Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

Advertising and 
marketing to improve 
the image of the 
council 

Conduct 
advertising 
campaign 
comprising of 5 
activities to 
market the 
Council in 
different medias 
(e.g. 
magazines, 
radios, social 
media, 
newspapers, 
etc.) 

Print advertising or 
article  in 
community 
newspapers/ 
education magazine  
 
Marketing on social 
media platforms 
(facebook and twitter) 
 
Exhibition at national 
and provincial events 
 
Council marketing on 
platforms like radio / tv  
 
Advertising in 
publications of Parties 
to Council 
 
Collaborative 
marketing (E.g. World 
Teachers’ Day) 
 
Marketing of Council 
services and 
developments in 
Labour Bulletin & New 
Negotiator  

 

Achieved 
 
Exhibition at national and 
provincial events 
African Education Week on 
29th and 30th June 2016 
 
Collaborative marketing 
Council exhibited at the TASP 
June 16 celebrations in 
Alexandra on 15th June 2016 
 
Marketing of Council 
services and developments 
in Labour Bulletin & New 
Negotiator  
 
The June edition of the Labour 
Bulletin and New Negotiator 
was issued on 30th June 2016 
 
Marketing material was 
distributed at SADTU’s TVET 
Colloquium on 3rd and 4th June 
2016 

None   

Ensure the continuous 
availability, reliability, 
effectiveness and 
efficiency of ICT 
systems 

Upgraded ICT 
infrastructure 
up & running 
with two blade-
servers, VPN 
connection & 
new Unified 
telephone 
system   
 
 
 

Develop and approve 
specifications 

Achieved  
 
The Server specification was 
developed and the request 
was submitted to Supply Chain 
unit. 
 
 

None   
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Corporate Services 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2016/17 

Planned Target 
For 1st Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
1st Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 1st 
Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

Compliance to 
the information 
communication 
Technology 
(ICT) policies  & 
procedure 

Approval of Draft ICT 
policies 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Achieved  
 
The ICT Policies (ICT Systems 
Security, User Access Policy, 
Business Continuity Plan; 
Disaster Recovery Plan Policy, 
IT Change Management 
Policy, Internet and Email 
Policy and IT Governance 
Framework Policy) were 
presented and approved by 
EXCO. 
 

None   

Ensuring that a 
properly 
established and 
functioning 
Corporate 
Governance of 
ICT system is in 
place in the 
Council to 
leverage ICT as 
a business 
enabler 
 

Aligning the 
Information 
Communication 
Technology (ICT) 
strategy with the 
Council strategy   

 

Achieved 
 
Aligned and enforced by 
approved ICT Governance 
Policy.  

None   

 Office 365 
system up and 
running and 
satisfied the 
requirements of 
all computer 
users 

Configuration of office 
365 

Achieved 
 
The Office 365 was configured 
and tested.  

None   

 
Overview of performance for the first quarter of the 2016/17 financial year 
 
RESEARCH & MEDIA (COMMUNICATION SERVICES) 
 

The Research and Media unit attended three events during the period under review as part of its advocacy campaign. 
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Marketing material was distributed at the SADTU TVET Colloquium on 3rd June 2016 at Kopanong Conference Centre.  
 
The ELRC was the key sponsor of the TASP June 16 Commemoration in Alexandra on 15th June 2016. The Council exhibited at this 
event and distributed marketing material to the 200 delegates who attended the event.   
 
The unit also exhibited at Africa Education Week 2016 at Gallagher Estate on 29th and 30th June 2016.  
 
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

 

During the period under review the following ICT policies were approved: ICT Disaster Recovery Plan (DRP); ICT System Security; 
User Access Control; Business Continuity Plan; IT Governance and Framework; Internet and Email Policy and IT Change 
Management Policy, to ensure that efficiency and effectiveness of ICT corporate governance.  
 
Disaster Recovery Testing  
 
ICT successfully conducted disaster recovery testing on two occasions during the first quarter to ensure that data and systems are 
recovered in the event of a virus attack, data loss or disaster. 
 
Server Health Check and Monitoring 
 
Server health check; event viewer; server room temperature; hard disk; server speed fan and firewall system logs were conducted 
on a daily basis during the reporting period to ensure that there is no business disruption and server down time during the day. 
 
Configuration of office 365 account 
 
The office 365 account was configured and piloted during the period under review.  
 
System security 
 
Deployment of security and antivirus updates were done on all workstations on a weekly basis to ensure protection from virus attacks 
and system crashes.  
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Biometric time and attendance 
 
Polling of time and attendance was generated on a weekly basis and submitted to Managers and the HR unit. 
 
Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance 
 
Not applicable.  
 
Changes to planned targets 
 
No changes were made to planned targets.  
 
Linking performance to budget 

 
  1st Quarter 2016/17   

Programme Name Budget Actual Expenditure (Over)/Under Expenditure 

Corporate Services  R’000 R’000 R’000 

 IT, Communication Services, HR R3 542 R2 725 R817 

    

Total R3 542 R2 725 R817 
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ANNEXURE B: MOBILISING EMPLOYEE SERVICES 
 
Overview of the Human Resources Department’s performance for the first quarter of the 2016/17 financial year. 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
The Human Resources report summarises the employment relations activities of the ELRC for the first quarter. The HR issues that are being 
reported on include recruitment, resignations (turnover), vacancies, employment equity, personnel expenditure, training and skills development, 
employee wellness and employee relations.  
 
RECRUITMENT/APPOINTMENTS 
 
During the period under review, the Council advertised two permanent positions in the month of May viz; Case Management Officer and the 
Chief Financial Officer. 
  
The Council conducted interviews for the Case Management Officer on 9th June 2016.  The successful candidate will commence employment in 
the second quarter. Interviews for the CFO post are scheduled for 19th July 2016. 
 
INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 
 
During the period under review, two employees whose probation was ending in the month of April 2016, were not confirmed for employment due 
to poor performance.  
 
An incapacity hearing for both employees took place and the outcome of the hearing was not to extend their probation. Both employees pursued 
the matter at the CCMA, the one employee’s outcome was termination by mutual agreement and the other employee’s case will be heard at the 
CCMA on 19th July 2016.  
 
Furthermore, two employees who are still on probation were given final written warnings for their poor performance, one of them has since 
resigned and is serving notice until 31st July 2016.  
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FURTHER STUDIES AND TRAINING DEVELOPMENT 
 
During the period under review no Skills Development took place, the HR unit is yet to receive results for employees who are furthering their 
academic qualifications in the month of July. A Performance Management workshop was conducted for the management team. 
 
PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 
 
Performance Agreements were signed in the first quarter and the Performance Assessments for the same quarter will be concluded by 8th July 
2016. 
 
EMPLOYEE WELLNESS 
 
An employee wellness programme was conducted on 10th June 2016 as part of enhancing staff morale and commemorating of Youth Day (16 
June). 
 
RESIGNATIONS/RETIREMENT 
 
Two employees resigned in the month of May from the Corporate Services and Executive Services Department viz; HR Manager and Chief 
Financial Officer.  
 
The HR Manager indicated that her reasons for resignation were family commitments and that there is no growth at the ELRC. 
 
The CFO indicated that his reasons for resignation were pressure of work and family commitments. 
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2.        LEAVE MANAGEMENT 
 

LEAVE REPORT: 01 APRIL 2016 TO 30 JUNE 2016 
 

Corporate Services Department 
 

CS Days Taken 

ANNUAL LEAVE 66 

SICK LEAVE 27 

FAMILY RESPONSIBILITY  6 

STUDY  23 

 
Supply Chain Management Department 
 

SCM Days Taken 

ANNUAL LEAVE 86 

SICK LEAVE 10 

FAMILY RESPONSIBILITY  5 

STUDY  7 

 
Executive Services Department 
 

EX Days Taken 

ANNUAL LEAVE 16 

SICK LEAVE 3 

FAMILY RESPONSIBILITY  0 

STUDY  7 
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Dispute Management Services Department 
 

DMS Days Taken 

ANNUAL LEAVE 46 

SICK LEAVE 9 

FAMILY RESPONSIBILITY  0 

STUDY  7 

 
Collective Bargaining Services Department 
 

CBS Days Taken 

ANNUAL LEAVE 186 

SICK LEAVE 21 

FAMILY RESPONSIBILITY  4 

STUDY  11 

 
3. HUMAN RESOURCE OVERSIGHT STATISTICS 
 
Personnel cost by programme 

 

Programme 

 Total 
Expenditure for 

the entity 
(R’000)  

Personnel Expenditure 
(R’000) 

Personnel exp. as a % 
of total  exp. (R’000) No. of employees 

Average personnel cost 
per employee (R’000) 

Collective Bargaining R4 654 R2 427 20% 21 R116  

Dispute Resolution R2 141 R645 5% 6 R107  

Corporate Services R3 905 R2 189 18% 23 R95  

Executive Services R1 148 R906 8% 3 R302  

Total R11 849  R6 167  52% 53 R116  
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Personnel cost by salary band 

 

Level 
Personnel Expenditure 

(R’000) 

% of personnel exp. 
to total personnel 

cost (R’000) 
No. of 

employees 

Average personnel 
cost per employee 

(R’000) 

Top Management R598  9% 2 R299  

Senior Management R795  12% 4 R199  

Professional qualified R2 704  41% 17 R159  

Skilled R2 192  34% 28 R78  

Semi-skilled R92  1% 2 R46  

Unskilled R154  2% 4 R38  

Total R6 535  100% 57 R115  

 
Performance rewards 

 

Programme 
Performance 

rewards 

Personnel 
Expenditure 

(R’000) 

% of performance 
rewards  to total 

personnel cost (R’000) 

Top Management - - - 

Senior Management - - - 

Professional qualified - - - 

Skilled - - - 

Semi-skilled - - - 
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Programme 
Performance 

rewards 

Personnel 
Expenditure 

(R’000) 

% of performance 
rewards  to total 

personnel cost (R’000) 

Unskilled - - - 

Total - - - 

 
Training costs 

 

Programme 

Personnel 
Expenditure 

(R’000) 

Training 
Expenditure 

Training exp. 
as a % of 
Personnel  

cost (R’000) 
No. of 

employees 

Average 
training cost 
per employee 

(R’000) (R’000) 

Collective Bargaining R2 427  R15  0.6% 21 R0.7  

Dispute Resolution R645                      -    
                       
-    6                   -    

Corporate Services R2 189  R27  1.2% 23 R1.2  

Executive Services R906  R14  1.6% 3 R5  

Total R6 167  R56  0.9% 53 R1.1  
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Employment and vacancies 
 

Employment levels per program 
 

Programme 

2016/2017 
Approved 

Posts 

2016/2017 2016/2017 

% of 
vacancies 

No. of 
Employees Vacancies 

Executive Office 5 3 2 40% 

Collective Bargaining 22 21 1 5% 

Corporate Services 24 23 1 4% 

Dispute Resolution & Prevention 7 6 1 14% 

TOTAL 58 53 5 9% 

 
Employment and vacancies per level 
 

Programme 

2016/2017 
Approved 

Posts 

2016/2017 20156/2017 

% of 
vacancies 

No. of 
Employees Vacancies 

Top Management 2 1 1 50% 

Senior Management 4 4 0 0% 

Professional qualified 17 15 2 12% 

Skilled  29 27 2 7% 

Semi-skilled 2 2 0 0% 

Unskilled 4 4 0 0% 

TOTAL 58 53 5 9% 
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Employment changes 
 

Salary Band Employment 
at beginning 

of period 

Appointments  Terminations  Transfers Employment 
at end of the 

period 

Top Management 2 0 1 0 1 

Senior Management 4 0 0 0 4 

Professional qualified 17 0 2 0 15 

Skilled  28 0 1 0 27 

Semi-skilled 2 0 0 0 2 

Unskilled 4 0 0 0 4 

Total 57 0 4 0 53 

 
Reasons for staff leaving 
 

Reason Number % of total 
no. of staff 

leaving 

Death 0 0% 

Resignation 2 4% 

Dismissal 1 2% 

Retirement 0 0% 

Ill health 0 0% 

Expiry of contract 0 0% 

Other (Termination by mutual 
agreement) 

1 2% 

Total 4 7% 
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Labour Relations: Misconduct and disciplinary action 

 
Nature of disciplinary Action Number  

Verbal Warning 0 

Written Warning 0 

Final Written warning 2 

Demotion 0 

Disciplinary 0 

Dismissal 1 

Grievances 0 

Other (Termination by mutual 
agreement) 

1 

Total 4 

 
Equity Targets and Employment Equity Status  

 
Levels   

MALE 

  African Coloured Indian White 

  Current  Target Current  Target Current  Target Current  Target 

Top Management 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Senior Management 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Professional qualified 8 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 

Skilled  11 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Semi-skilled 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Unskilled 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

TOTAL 26 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 
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Levels Disabled Staff 

  Male  Female 

  Current  Target Current  Target 

Top Management 0 0 0 0 

Senior Management 0 0 0 0 

Professional qualified 0 0 0 0 

Skilled  0 0 1 0 

Semi-skilled 0 0 0 0 

Unskilled 1 0 0 0 

TOTAL 1 0 1 0 

 
 
 
 

Levels   

FEMALE 

  AFRICAN COLOURED INDIAN WHITE 

  Current  Target Current  Target Current  Target Current  Target 

Top Management 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Senior Management 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Professional qualified 3 0 2 0 0 0 1 0 

Skilled  13 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 

Semi-skilled 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Unskilled 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

TOTAL 20 0 3 0 1 0 2 0 
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PROGRAMME 4 FINANCE AND SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT SERVICES 
 
Purpose 
 
The purpose of supply chain management services is to ensure that contracts for goods and services, are done in accordance with a system 
which is fair, equitable, transparent, competitive and cost effective as per section 217 of RSA Constitution.  
 
Sub-programmes:  

 Finance and Administration 

 Demand management  

 Database (suppliers) management  

 Contract management  

 Procurements and acquisitions 

 Assets management  
 
Strategic Objectives 
 

 To ensure sound financial management and reporting discipline in terms of section 53 of the LRA 

 To provide procurement and provisioning functions in the ELRC into and integrated SCM function 

 To provide sound asset management which includes safeguarding and maintenance of the ELRC assets 

 Take effective and appropriate steps to prevent unauthorised, irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

 
Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements 
 

Finance & Supply Chain Management Services 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2016/17 

Planned Target 
For 1st Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
1st Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 1st 
Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

Achieve unqualified 
audit opinion from 
external audit at year 
end 

Achieve 
unqualified 
audit opinion 
from external 
audit at year 
end 

Productions of the 
monthly financial 
statements and 
quarterly financials  

Achieved 
 
Monthly financial statements 
are prepared. 

None    
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Finance & Supply Chain Management Services 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2016/17 

Planned Target 
For 1st Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
1st Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 1st 
Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

Effective, efficient and 
economic SCM 
function with minimal 
internal and external 
audit findings (80% 
reduction) 

Effective, 
efficient and 
economic SCM 
function with 
minimal internal 
and external 
audit findings 
(80% reduction) 
 

An approved 
procurement plan 
(Demand 
management)  
Monthly reporting 
( e.g. commitments, 
contract, Inventory) 

Achieved 
 
Procurement Plan done and 
approved by the GS. 
 
Database prepared validated 
and all invalid suppliers 
removed.  
 
Advert issued to invite 
suppliers to register on the 
ELRC database.  
 
Contract register reports 
prepared and approved on a  
monthly basis.  
 
Inventory reports prepared and 
approved on monthly basis. 
 

None    

Complete and 
accurate Fixed Assets 
register (FAR) at the 
end of the year 

Complete and 
accurate Fixed 
Assets register 
at the end of 
the year 

Development of 
implementation plans 
in response to 
external audit findings 

Not Achieved 
 
FAR completed, draft close-out 
report received from PWC. 
Final report to be received 
when all queries are resolved.  

 
 

IT equipment to be disposed, 
awaiting approval of GS.  

 
 
Draft report received. Final 
report to be received when 
all queries are resolved. 

 
 
 
SCM to seek approval of 
the recommended form/ 
method of disposal. 
 

IT had to confirm equipment 
that was to be disposed of.  

 

0% unauthorised 
expenditure and 
irregular expenditure 
an 80% reduction of 
fruitless and wasteful 
expenditure year on 
year  

0% 
unauthorized 
expenditure and 
irregular 
expenditure an 
80% reduction 
of fruitless and 
wasteful 
expenditure 
year on year 
 

0% unauthorized  
 
Expenditure and 
Irregular expenditure 
80% reduction of 
fruitless and wasteful 
expenditure quarter 
on quarter 

Achieved 
 
Irregular expenditure is 
maintained and is up-to date.  
 
Wasteful expenditure has 
reduced by 81% as compared 
to the 1st quarter of the 2015-
16 financial year.  

None    
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Overview of performance for the first quarter of the 2016/17 financial year 
 
Asset management is not complete due to the disposal of IT items. The Supply Chain Management unit managed to design a procurement plan 
aligned with the budget for 2016/2017. The unit also issued out an advert to invite service providers to register on the ELRC database. The unit 
is also compiling monthly basis reports on commitments as well as monthly stock count. 
 
The finance division continuously performs monthly and quarterly financial statements which are compliant with IFRS – SME. The implementation 
of the evolution system has progressed well. The planned Go-Live date is 1st August 2016.   
 
Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance 
 
The Supply Chain Management unit is fast tracking the disposal of IT equipment.  
 
Changes to planned targets 
 
No changes were made to planned targets.  
 
Linking performance to budget 

  
  1st Quarter 2016/17   

Programme Name Budget Actual Expenditure (Over)/Under Expenditure 

 R’000 R’000 R’000 

Finance and SCM R1 077 R1 290 -R213 

    

Total R1 077 R1 290 -R213 
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PROGRAMME 5 EXECUTIVE SERVICES 
 
Purpose 
 
The purpose of Executive services is to ensure the Council meets its strategic vision which rests on the pillars of its mandate to maintain labour 
peace in public education and extends to the attainment of quality education in public schools, through stakeholder collaboration and support of 
initiatives to restore the image of the teaching profession. 
 
Sub-programmes:  

 Strategic and corporate governance  

 Internal audit and compliance  

 Risk management  
 
Strategic Objectives 
 

 To add value through assessing the tone and risk management culture of the organisation,  as well as evaluating and reporting on the 
effectiveness and efficiency of the implementation of management policies. 

 To instil fiscal discipline, sound corporate governance and compliance with regulatory framework. 
 

Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements 
 

Finance & Supply Chain Management Services 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2016/17 

Planned Target 
For 1st Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
1st Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 1st 
Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

Approved 3-year 
rolling plan and annual 
audit plan 

3-year Internal 
Audit rolling 
plan and risk-
based annual 
audit plan 
presented to 
AC 

Review of the 3-year 
rolling plan and 
develop an annual 
audit plan, 
presentation to AC 

Achieved 
 
Internal Audit coverage plan 
2016-17 was submitted to 
Audit Committee members on 
8th June 2016.  

None   

Number of risk-based 
projects audited as 
per the Internal Audit 
Coverage Plan 

Audit 75% of 
risk-based 
projects 

Perform 75% internal 
audit reviews to 
determine compliance 
with applicable 
legislation and 
policies. 

Achieved 
 
All three planned audits were 
performed.  
 

None   
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Finance & Supply Chain Management Services 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2016/17 

Planned Target 
For 1st Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
1st Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 1st 
Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

  Quarterly internal 
audit reports compiled 
and presented to AC 
and management 

Achieved 
 
Audit reports presented in the 
July Audit Committee meeting. 
 

None   

Monitor the adequacy 
of controls designed to 
ensure that risks are 
effectively managed  

Produce a Risk 
Management 
Report 

Quarterly risk 
management report 
compiled and 
presented to AC and 
management 

Achieved 
 
Risk assessment report for 
2016-17 submitted to the Audit 
Committee members on 8th 
June 2016 
 
Quarterly risk management 
report presented in the July 
2016 Audit Committee 
meeting.  
 

None   

Monitor the regulatory 
and business 
compliance universe 
and issue a progress 
report  

Produce a 
Compliance 
Management 
Report  

Quarterly compliance 
management review 
and compile a status 
report to the AC and 
management 

Achieved 
 
Quarterly compliance status  
report presented in the July 
2016 Audit Committee 
meeting. 
 

None   

 
Overview of performance for the first quarter of the 2016/17 financial year 
 
The performance for Executive services was satisfactory during the period under review as all planned targets were achieved. A refresher risk 
management workshop was held on 22nd April 2016. The main aim of the session was to provide managers with aspects of importance in the 
risk assessment process. 
 
INTERNAL AUDIT 
 
Audit work completed in the quarter includes: 

 2016-17 internal audit coverage plan 
- Three year rolling plan 
- Annual audit plan 
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- Annual risk assessment report 

 Performance management system and leave management (Human Resource) 

 Research and Media 

 Compliance management 

 Status report 
- Progress on prior audit reports 

 Ad-hoc engagements (management request) 
- COIDA fruitless and wasteful expenditure 
- SARS fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

 Draft Compliance Management policy 

 Compliance universe 
 
Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance 
 
Not applicable.  
 
Changes to planned targets 
 
No changes were made to planned targets.  
 
Linking performance to budget 

  
  1st Quarter 2016/17   

Programme Name Budget Actual Expenditure (Over)/Under Expenditure 

 R’000 R’000 R’000 

Executive Services R1 286 R1 035 R251 

    

Total R1 286 R1 035 R251 
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Robot Indicator Status for performance tables: 
 

Status Colour 

Not Achieved  

50% or more of target achieved, supported by evidence  

Target fully achieved  

Default status of an indicator (White)  
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PROGRAMME 6  FINANCIAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
REPORT OF THE CFO 
QUARTER ENDED JUNE 2016 
 
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES  
 
Assets 
 
Additions of R 1,3 million have been capitalised to computer software, furniture and fittings as well as office equipment.  
 
Total receivables amount to R 594 thousand mainly due to prepayments made in respect of office furniture.  
 
The cash and cash equivalents of the Council remain stable. The Council continues to draw interest income from cash reserves which is reported 
at R 1,3 million year to date. The current cash equivalent amount to R 116 million as at the end of the reporting period. 
 
Liabilities  
 
Trade and other payables reported at R24 million is mainly attributed to liabilities in respect of full-time shop stewards brought forward from the 
previous financial year and supplier and panelist invoices received to date. The Council continues to process invoices according to the policy 
guidelines of 30 days. The Council also continues to process claims as they are received from the DBE. 
 
INCOME 
 
Levies income received is at 3% above the quarterly budget which translates to 26% of the full year budget.  
 
The levies income indicates a 2% decrease compared to the first quarter of the prior year, due to the decrease in the number of contributors. 
 
EXPENDITURE 
 
Total operating expenditure for the quarter is reported at 72% of the quarterly budget compared to 18% of the full year budget.  
 
Details of expenditure are covered in the Quarterly financial statements and the financial highlights of this report. 
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EXTERNAL AUDIT 
 
The Council’s statutory audit for the financial year ended 31 March 2016 is progressing well and we anticipate that we will meet the reporting 
deadline of 31 July 2016.  
 
CONCLUSION 
 
The financial performance and position of the Council remains stable. 
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6.1 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 
 

THE EDUCATION LABOUR RELATIONS COUNCIL 
(Established in terms of the Labour Relations Act, 1995 [Act No: 66 of 1995]) 

FIRST QUARTER 
HIGHLIGHTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 

 
Introduction 

The financial performance for the period under review remains stable.  
 
Total Income  
 
The amount of income earned in the first quarter of the financial year is R13,7 million (2015/16:R14 million) which is 25% below the quarterly 
budget.  
 
Levies 
 
The levies are 3% above the quarterly budget and 2% below the actual collections in the first quarter of 2016 financial year. 
 
Other Revenue 
 
Interest received is 9% below the quarterly budget. The average interest rate for the period is 7.19%.  
 
Total Expenditure 
 
Total operating expenditure for the quarter is reported at 72% of the quarterly budget compared to 18% of the full year budget. The introductions 
of penalties for late submission of claims by panelists or commissioners which becomes effective in this quarter, has resulted in increased 
volumes of claims received each month-end. 
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1. Dispute Management Services 
 
The actual expenditure is at 66% of the quarterly budget and 17% of the yearly budget. Compared to the previous year’s first quarter, the 
actual expenditure has increased by 41%. The reasons for the improved utilisation are as mentioned above. 
 

2. Collective Bargaining Services 
 

Overall actual spending is reported at 53% of the quarterly budget and 13% of the yearly budget. Compared to the previous year’s quarter the 
expenditure has increased by 24%.  
 

Collective Bargaining Services: Provincial Chambers 
 
Overall, financial expenditure for provincial chambers was 64% of the quarterly budget. Compared to the previous financial year, there is a 
decrease of 81%. 
  

3. Administration 
 
Governance Support Services 
 
Actual expenditure is 81% utilised to the quarterly budget and 20% to the yearly budget. Compared to the prior year, the spending is 16% 
below the first quarter budget. 
 
Communication Services 
 
Actual expenditure is 67% utilised to the quarterly budget and 17% to the yearly budget. Compared to the prior year, the spending is 76% 
below the first quarter budget. 
 
Finance, Accounting Services and Facilities Management Services 
 
Actual expenditure is overspent by 37% to the quarterly budget and 66% to the yearly budget. This is mainly attributed to the consulting fees 
paid for the review of the fixed assets and the asset register.  
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Mobilising Employees Services 
 
Actual expenditure is overspend by more than 200% to the quarterly budget and 61% to the yearly budget. This is mainly attributed to the 
Compensation Act compliance fees which was under budgeted.  
 
Conclusion 
 
The Council reports a surplus of R1,9 million. 
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6.2 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THE EDUCATION LABOUR RELATIONS COUNCIL 
First Quarterly Financial Statements for the period ended 

30 June 2016 
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June 2016 1st Quater Report  
Education Labour Relations Council 

Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2016 

    June 2016  June 2015 
  

Notes   R  R 

Assets       

Current Assets     117,084,598   138,694,059 

Trade and other receivables 6     594,791       1,306,665 

Cash and cash equivalents 7     116,489,807   137,387,394 

       

Non-Current Assets    34,088,811    11,601,018 

Property and equipment 2     33,235,782     11,297,517 

Intangible assets 3     853,029          303,502  

         

Total Assets    151,173,410  150,295,077 

 
Equity and Liabilities 

      

Equity       

Retained surplus    127,143,540  73,310,317 

       

Liabilities       

Current Liabilities    24,029,870  76,984,760 

Trade and other payables 8     4,535,716       2,108,664 

Operating lease liability 4     82,384          101,917 

Provisions 10   776,022  711,893 

Shopstewards accrual  9     18,635,749   74,062,286 

       

    151,173,410  150,295,077 
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Statement of Financial Performance for year ended 30 June 2016 

 

Description  June 2016 
R 

 June 2015 
R 

     

Revenue  12,329,170  12,279,980 

Other Income  1,419,157  1,750,365 

Expenditure  (11,848,855)  (9,272,086) 

Operating surplus for the quarter 1,899,472  4,758,259  
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Statement of Changes in Equity as at 30 June 2016 
 

 
 

 
 

Retained 
surplus 

R 

 
Total  

equity 
R 

Balance at 01 April 2016  125,244,068  125,244,068 

Total comprehensive surplus for the quarter  1,899,472       1,899,472 

Balance at 30 June 2016  127,143,540  127,143,540 
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Statement of Cash Flows as at 30 June 2016

June June 

2016 2015

R R

Cash flows from operating activities

Net cash from operating activities 5,008,196 5,116,558

Cash receipts from customers 12,321,335   12,279,980

Cash paid to suppliers and employees ( 7,313,139) ( 7,163,422)

Cash flows from investing activities

Net cash from investing activities

Purchase of property and equipment 2 ( 1,362,260) ( 1,403,435)

Cash flows from financing activities

Movement in shopstewards accrual (5,517,534)   (2,866,635)

Total cash movement for the year (1,871,598) 846,489

Cash at the beginning of the year 118,361,405 136,540,905

Total cash at the end of the year 7 116,489,807 137,387,394

Notes



97 

 

Accounting Policies 

 
1. Presentation of financial statements 
 
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards for Small and Medium-sized 
Entities (IFRS SME) and the Labour Relations Act, 66 of 1995 as amended . The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost 
basis and incorporate the principal accounting policies set out below. They are presented in South African Rands.  
 
These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period, except for the changes set out in note 19 First-time adoption of the International 
Financial Reporting Standards for Small and Medium-sized Entities (IFRS SME).  
 
1.1     Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty  
 
Key sources of estimation uncertainty 
 
Useful lives of property and equipment  
 
The council reviews the estimated useful lives of property and equipment when changing circumstances indicate that they may have changed 
since the most recent reporting date. 
 
Provisions  
 
Provisions are inherently based on assumptions and estimates using the best information available. Additional disclosure of these estimates of 
provisions are included in note 10 - Provisions.  
 
1.2    Property and equipment 
 
Property and equipment Property and equipment are tangible items that:  

 are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, for rental to others or for administrative purposes; and 

 are expected to be used during more than one period.  
 
Property and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.  
 
Cost includes all costs incurred to bring the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended 
by management.  



98 

 

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property and equipment and costs incurred subsequently to add to, 
replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of property and equipment, the carrying 
amount of the replaced part is derecognised.  
 
Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method to write down the cost, less estimated residual value over the useful life of the property 
and equipment, which is as follows:  
 

The useful lives of items of property and equipment have been assessed as follows: 
 

Item Depreciation method Average useful life in years 

Buildings  Straight line 25 

Furniture and fittings Straight line 10 

Motor vehicles Straight line 7 

Office equipment Straight line 8 

Computer equipment Straight line 8 

Leasehold improvements Straight line 5 

 

The residual value, depreciation method and useful life of each asset are reviewed at each reporting date if there are indicators present that 
there has been a significant change from the previous estimate.  
 
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in profit or loss in the 
period. 

 
1.3  Intangible assets 
 
Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost and subsequently at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.  
 
Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual values as follows: 
 

Item Depreciation method Average useful life in years 

Computer software Straight line 8 

 

The residual value, amortisation period and amortisation method for intangible assets are reassessed when there is an indication that there is 
a change from the previous estimate. 
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1.4  Financial instruments 
 
Initial measurement  
 
Financial instruments are initially measured at the transaction price (including transaction costs except in the initial measurement of financial 
assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value through profit or loss) unless the arrangement constitutes, in effect, a financing transaction 
in which case it is measured at the present value of the future payments discounted at a market rate of interest for a similar debt instrument. 
 
Financial instruments at amortised cost  
 
These include loans, trade receivables and trade payables. Those debt instruments which meet the criteria in section 11.8(b) of the standard, 
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Debt instruments which are classified as current assets or 
current liabilities are measured at the undiscounted amount of the cash expected to be received or paid, unless the arrangement effectively 
constitutes a financing transaction.  
 
At each reporting date, the carrying amounts of assets held in this category are reviewed to determine whether there is any objective evidence 
of impairment. If there is objective evidence, the recoverable amount is estimated and compared with the carrying amount. If the estimated 
recoverable amount is lower, the carrying amount is reduced to its estimated recoverable amount, and an impairment loss is recognised 
immediately in profit or loss. 
 
1.5 Leases 
 
A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the lessee. All other leases 
are operating leases.  
 
Operating leases - lessor  
 
Operating lease income is recognised as an income on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless:  

 another systematic basis is representative of the time pattern of the benefit from the leased asset, even if the receipt of payments is not 
on that basis, or  

 the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation (based on published indexes or statistics) to compensate 
for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases.  
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Operating leases – lessee  
 
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless: 

 another systematic basis is representative of the time pattern of the benefit from the leased asset, even if the payments are not on that 
basis, or  

 the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation (based on published indexes or statistics) to compensate 
for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases.  
 

Any contingent rents are expensed in the period they are incurred.  
 

1.6 Impairment of assets 
 
The council assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that property, plant and equipment or intangible assets or goodwill 
may be impaired. 
 
If there is any such indication , the recoverable amount of any affected asset (or group of related assets) is estimated and compared with its 
carrying amount. If the estimated recoverable amount is lower, the carrying amount is reduced to its estimated recoverable amount, and an 
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.  
 
If an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or group of related assets) is increased to the revised estimate 
of its recoverable amount, but not in excess of the amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for 
the asset (or group of assets) in prior years. A reversal of impairment is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit. 
 
1.7  Employee benefits 
 
Short term employee benefits 
 
The cost of short term employee benefits (those payable within 12 months after the services is rendered, such as paid vacation leave and 
sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits such as medical care), are recognised in the period in which the service is rendered and are 
not discounted. 
 
Defined contribution plans  
 
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged as an expense as they fall due. 
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1.8 Provisions 
 
A provision is a liability where the timing or amount of the outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential is uncertain. 
 
Provisions are recognised when the council has an obligation at the reporting date as a result of a past event; it is probable that the council 
will be required to transfer economic benefits in settlement; and the amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably.  
 
Provisions are measured at the present value of the amount expected to be required to settle the obligation using a rate that reflects current 
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to the passage of 
time is recognised as interest expense.  
 
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.  
 
1.9 Commitments 
 
A commitment is an agreement between two or more parties that is binding on those parties, to the degree that to renege on the agreement 
will be costly. 
 
Commitments represent the orders issued to the suppliers that have been approved, but where no delivery has taken place as at year-end 
and contractual commitments. 
 
Commitments are not recognised in the statement of financial position as liabilities and assets but are included in the disclosure notes. 
 
The ELRC discloses the amount of contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.  
 
1.10 Contingencies 

 
Contingent liabilities 
 
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence 
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events that are beyond the control of the entity. 
 
Alternatively, a contingent liability is a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because: 

 It is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle the obligation; 
or 
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 The amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. 
 
Contingent liabilities are included in the disclosure notes. The estimation of the amounts disclosed is based on the expected possible outflows of 
economic benefits should there be a present obligation.  
 
Contingent assets 
 
Contingent assets arise from unplanned or other unexpected events that are not wholly within the control of the entity and give rise to the 
possibility of an inflow of economic benefits or service potential to the entity.  
 
Contingent assets are included in the disclosure notes. The estimation of the amounts disclosed is based on the expected possible inflows of 
economic benefits or service potential to the entity. 
 
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised as provisions as the recognition criteria are not complied with. 
 
 
1.11 Revenue  
 
Revenue is recognised to the extent that the council has transferred the significant risks and rewards of ownership of goods to the buyer, or has 
rendered services under an agreement provided the amount of revenue can be measured reliably and it is probable that economic benefits 
associated with the transaction will flow to the council. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, excluding 
sales taxes and discounts.  

 
Interest is recognised, in profit or loss, using the effective interest rate method.  
 
1.12 Changes in Estimates and Prior Period Errors 
 
Changes in Estimates 
 
As a result of the uncertainties inherent in delivering services, many items in financial statements cannot be measured with precision but can 
only be estimated. Estimates involve judgement based on recently available, reliable information and therefore an estimate may change as 
new information becomes known, circumstances change, or more experience is obtained. 
 
The entity recognises the effects of changes in accounting estimates prospectively, by including the effects in surplus or deficit in the period 
of the change - if the change affects that period only - or in the period of the change and future periods, if the change affects both. 
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Prior Period Errors 
 
Prior period errors are omissions from and misstatements in the entity’s financial statements for one or more prior period. These errors arise 
from a failure to use (or misuse of) reliable information that was available when the financial statements for those periods were authorised 
for issue and could reasonably be expected to have been obtained and taken into account in the preparation and presentation of those 
financial statements. 
 
Such errors include the effect of mistakes in applying the accounting policy, oversight or misinterpretation of facts. 

 
1.13 Events after the reporting period 
 
Events after the reporting period are those events, favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the end of the reporting period and the 
date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. 

 
The entity adjusts the amounts recognised in its financial statements to reflect conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period 
(adjusting events after reporting date) prior to authorisation for issue. 

 
1.14  Presentation of Budget information 
 
The entity discloses a comparison of the budget and actual amount in the primary financial statements.  
 
1.15 Related Parties 
 
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party 
in making financial and operating decisions; or if the related party entity and another party are subject to common control.  
 
Related parties include individuals who have significant influence over the entity, such as members of the EXCO, its committees and key 
management personnel.  
 
Only transactions between the entity and related parties during the reporting period and not at arm’s length or not in the ordinary course of 
business, as well as comparative information are disclosed in the notes to the annual financial statements. 
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1.16 Irregular expenditure 
 
Irregular expenditure as defined in section 1 of the  is expenditure other than recognised expenditure, incurred in contravention of or that is not 
in accordance with a requirement of any applicable legislation, including: 

 The State Tender Board Act, 1968 (Act No.86 of 1968), or any regulations made in terms of this Act 

 Any provincial legislation providing for procurement procedures in that provincial government 
 
Irregular expenditure is accounted for in terms of the National Treasury practice note No.4 of 2008/2009, which was issued in terms of sections 
76(1) to 76(4) of the . 
 
Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the period under review, which was condoned before year-end, must be disclosed 
appropriately in the irregular expenditure note. In such instance, no further action is required with the exception of updating the note in the financial 
statements. 
 
Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the period under review, which was not condoned by the National Treasury or relevant 
authority, must be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. If the liability for irregular expenditure can be attributed to a person, 
a debt account must be created if such a person is liable by Law. 
 
1.17 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure  
 
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure means expenditure which is made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care been exercised. 
 
Where an investigation determines, a receivable will be recorded against an employee who has been found to have incurred the fruitless and 
wasteful expenditure. In instances where a receivable is not raised against an employee or the amount is irrecoverable, the Accounting Authority 
may write off the debt. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure identified is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 30 June 2016  

Note 2  

Property and equipment 

 June 2016    June 2015  

Cost Accumulated 

depreciation 

Carrying Value  Cost Accumulated 

depreciation 

Carrying 

Value 

Land  1,000,000 - 1,000,000  1,000,000 - 1,000,000 

Buildings  34,345,197 (5,253,991) 29,091,206  12,628,833 (5,069,974) 7,558,858 

Furniture and fittings 2,830,707 (2,066,412) 764,294  2,215,567 (1,885,024) 1,885,024 

Motor vehicles 499,000 (106,929) 392,071  499,000 (35,643) 463,357 

Leasehold improvements 217,066 (201,538) 15,528  217,066 (160,281) 56,784.28 

Office equipment 3,196,452 (2,591,945) 604,507  2,560,036 (1,928,966) 631,070 

Computer equipment 3,920,134 (2,551,958) 1,368,176  3,496,415 (1,966,613) 1,529,802 

 46,008,556 (12,772,773) 33,235,782  20,013,065 (11,046,501) 13,124,895 

Land  

Erf, Die Hoewes Extension 26 Township, Registration Division J.R. Province of Gauteng, in extent 3019 square meters. 

 

Note 3   

Intangible assets June 2016  June 2015 

 
Cost 

Accumulated 

amortisation 
Carrying Value 

 
Cost 

Accumulated 

amortisation 
Carrying Value 

Software 1,609,212 (756,183) 853,029  929,824 (626,322) 303,502 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 30 June 2016  
 

Note 4 

Operating lease liability 2016 
R 

2015 
R 

Lease liability (straight lining) 82,384 101,917 

   

Total minimum lease payments   

Not later than one year 1,107,085 998,872 

Later than one year and not later than five years 3,127,389 963,627 

 4,234,474 1,962,499 

 
The operating lease liability is the difference between actual payments and straight–lining as recognised in the statement of financial performance. The minimum 
lease payments reflected above only relate to the lease commitments; contractual commitments are disclosed under note No.17. 
 
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the ELRC for rentals of premises in the nine provincial offices. The leases typically run for a period of 
three to five years, with an option to renew. Rental expenses are increased annually as per the escalation clauses of the lease agreements.  
 

Note 5 

Retirement benefits 2016 
R 

2015 
R 

Defined contribution plan  
The entity provides retirements benefits through a defined contribution plan to all its employees. The provident Fund is governed by the Pension Funds Act, 
1956 (Act no 24 of 1956).  
The entity is under no obligation to cover any unfunded benefits. 

The total group contribution to the scheme 991,421 732,919 
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Note 6 

Trade and other receivables  2016 
R 

2015 
R 

Trade receivables 7,835 - 

Prepayments 377,430 134,503 

Receivable from employees 10,404 249 

Deposits 95,883 92,064 

Accrued income  - - 

Receivable from SARS 52,112 962,048 

Meeting refunds 37,103 31,414 

Flight tickets for re-use 14,024 9,108 

 594,791 1,306,665 

Trade and other receivables are not pledged as security. The carrying amount of the receivables approximate their fair value. 
 
Note 7 

Cash and cash equivalents 2016 
R 

2015 
R 

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:   

Cash on hand 19,066 15,226 

Current account 10,465,609 24,899,868 

Short term deposits* 7,267,493 112,472,299 

 116,489,807 138,694,059 

   
 

No restrictions have been placed on the use of the cash and cash equivalents for the operations of the entity. The carrying amount of these assets approximates 
to their fair value. 
 
*Short term deposits are held with the Corporate of Public deposits (SARB), the deposits are carried at an effective floating interest rate that varies between 
7.19% and (2016: 6.19%).  
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Note 8 

Trade and other payables 2016 
R 

2015 
R 

Trade payables 1,567,635 996,971 

Retention payable 310,350 - 

Accrued leave pay 1,199,835 1,164,188 

Accrued expenses 1,768,246 52,495 

 4,535,716 2,108,664 

Note 9 

Shop stewards accrual 2016 
R 

2015 
R 

   

Current liabilities 18,635,749 74,062,286 

   

Shop stewards accrual comprise of costs to be claimed for services rendered by a parties to Council but for which claims have not been received. A reliable 
estimate is made based on the number of meetings attended and provisions as per Collective Agreement. The liability is assessed at the end of each 
reporting period. 
 
Note 10 

Provisions 2016 
R 

2015 
R 

   

Provision for SADTU 776,022 711,893 

   

   

Reconciliation of Provisions: 30 June 2016 

 
 Opening 

Balance 
Utilised Addition Total 

      

Provision for SADTU  776,022 - - 776,022 
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Reconciliation of Provisions: 30 June 2015 

 Short-term 
 Opening 

Balance 
Utilised Additions Total 

      
Provision for SADTU  777,893 - - 777,893 
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Provisions comprise of costs to be claimed for services rendered by Parties to Council but for which claims have not been received. A reliable estimate is made 
based on the number of meetings attended and provisions as per Collective Agreement.  
 
Note 11 

Revenue 
2016 

R 
2015 

R 

Levies - FETC 509,280 525,810 

Levies - DBE 11,819,890 11,754,170 

 12,329,170 12,279,980 

 
All levies received bear no credit risk and are paid from salary deductions from educators and an equal contribution by employer. 
Note 12 

Other income 
2016 

R 
2015 

R 

 
 

Interest income 1,419,157 1,715,167 

Sundry income - 35,198 

 1,419,157 1,750,365 

 
Note 13 

Employee costs 2016 
R 

2015 
R 

   

Total cost 6,166,933 5,522,500 
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Note 14 

 
Taxation 

 
 

 

The Council is exempt from the payment of income tax in terms of section 10(1) (CA) (I) of the Income tax Act, No. 58 of 1962 
 
 
Note 15 

Auditor’s remuneration 
2016 

R 
2015 

R 

   

Statutory audit fees 89,055 321,694 

 

Note 16 

Commitments 
2016 

R 
2015 

R 

 
Already contracted, but not provided for:  

  

Capital expenditure 829,681 22,483,827 

Operating expenditure 2,574,167 660,542 

 3,403,848 23,144,369 

 
This committed expenditure relates to capital expenses and operating expenses and will be financed by available retained surplus.  
 
Commitments disclosed takes into consideration clauses as per the contractual agreements. Capital commitments relates to the balance payable for the 
building refurbishment project and the boardroom furniture not yet completed.  
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Note 17 

Contingencies  
 

 

 
Legal claims relates to civil cases against the Council for potential loss of income arising from a cancelled contract. The Council expects an inflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits in the amount of R50, 128. 

Note 18 

Related parties  

Employer party Department of Basic Education  

Members of key management Ms Nolusindiso Foca 

Mr Omphitlhetse Mafora  

Ms Octavia Makofane 

Mr Matlose Moela  

Mr Frederick Moloisi 

Ms Nelisiwe Bongco 

Trade unions South African Democratic Teachers Union (SADTU) 

Combined Trade Union – Autonomous Trade Union (CTU-ATU)  
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Related party transactions  
 
Fees paid to related parties in respect of services rendered 

  
2016 

R 
2015 

R 

Advocate L. Bono 20,000 21,108 

Advocate P. Bono* - 15,869 

 20,000 36,977 

 
*This relates to the fees paid for services rendered to the independent Chairperson outside the scope of the EXCO. 
 
Executive emoluments (Board fees)  

 2016 
R 

2015 
R 

   

Advocate L. Bono 55,000 40,000 

 
Members of the ELRC Executive committee did not receive emoluments during the financial year, except for Adv. L Bono who is an independent Chairperson 
of EXCO who receives such fees as per collective agreement. The Board fees to date amount to R 55,000. 
 
Non-Executive emoluments  

 2016 
R 

2015 
R 

Ms T Moeeng 15,136 21,504 

Mr M Mahonga 9,184 13,056 

Mr SA Ngobeni 10,046 9,500 

 34,366 44,060 

 
Non-Executive members serve in the audit committee of the ELRC. The Audit Committee sits for four meetings annually and any other special meetings. 
 
*The members are representatives of parties to the Council, and by virtue of being non-independent members they are not eligible for payments. 
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Key Management Personnel  

Key management information 

Class Description Number of 

members  

Executive members Accounting Authority 11 

Non-executive members Accounting Authority 3 

Executive management Accounting 

Officer/Executive 

2 

Senior management  Management  4 
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Note 19 
Executive management emoluments 

Executive management emoluments  
30 June 2016 

Basic 
salary 

13th  

cheque 

Provident 
Fund 

contribution 

Travel & 
Housing 

Allowances 
Other Total 

Ms NO Foca 234,186 19,516 42,153 35,090 3,606 334,551 

Mr OA Mafora 184,722 15,394 33,250 26,917 3,606 263,889 

 418,908 34,910 75,403 62,007 7,212 598,440 

 

Executive management emoluments 
30 June 2015 

Basic 
salary 

13th  

Cheque 

Provident 
Fund 

Contribution 

Travel & 
Housing 

Allowances 
Other 

Total 

Ms NO Foca 217,647 18,137 39,176 32,805 3,156 310,921 

Mr OA Mafora 171,675 14,306 30,902 17,499 10,868 245,250 

 389,322 32,443 70,078 50,304 14,024 556,171 

 
Senior Management  
 

Senior management emoluments 
 30 June 2016 

Basic 
salary 

13th  

cheque 

Provident 
Fund 

contribution 

Travel & Housing 
Allowances 

Other Total 

Ms O Makofane 137,440 11,453 24,739 19,104 3,606 196,342 
Ms N Bongco 138,816 11,568 24,987 19,332 3,606 198,309 
Mr FS Moloisi 141,516 11,793 25,473 19,778 3,606 202,166 
Mr MP Moela  138,816 11,568 24,987 19,332 3,606 198,309 

 556,588 100,186 46,382 77,546 14,424 795,126 
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Note 19 (continues) 

Senior management emoluments  
30 June 2015 

Basic salary 
13th  

cheque 

Provident 
Fund 

contribution 

Travel & 
Housing 

Allowances 
Other Total 

Ms O Makofane 138,688 11,557 24,963 - 7,275 182,475 
Ms N Bongco 140,068 11,672 25,212 - 7,347 184,300 
Mr MP Moela 140,068 11,672 25,212 4,193 3,156 184,301 
Mr FS Moloisi 142,670 11,889 25,681 1,881 3,764 185,886 

 561,487 46,791 101,068 6,074 21,542 690,171 

Note 20 

Irregular expenditure 
2016 

R 

2015 

R 

Opening balance 147,388 145,302 

- Add: Irregular expenditure - current year - - 

Closing balance 147,388 145,302 

 
The Council incurred irregular expenditure relating to non-compliance with the requirements of Treasury regulations 16A3 and Practice note 8 of 2007/8, 
wherein at least three quotations were not obtained from a list of prospective suppliers for procurements of goods or services for value above R2 000. It was 
also noted that in some instances the suppliers were appointed without completing all the required standard bidding forms (SBD). 
 
The Council has implemented controls to ensure that all supply chain requirements are complied with. An investigation has been instituted for the disclosed 
irregular expenditure as at year end. 
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Note 21 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 
2016 

R 

2015 

R 

Opening balance 77,926 71,412 

Add: Fruitless and wasteful expenditure incurred during the year 1,200 6,514 

Closing balance  79,126 77,926 

 
The fruitless and wasteful expenditure relates to expenses incurred for late account payments and expenses incurred dues to non-cancellation of travel 
arrangements made in respect of dispute resolution services. The Council continues to monitor these occurrences and where applicable controls are put in 
place. 
 
 
Note 22 

Financial instruments risk management  

 
The Council’s activities has limited exposure to financial risks, market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and 
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. Risk management is carried by the Risk Management Committee under a policy approved by the Council. 
 
Liquidity risk 
 
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash. The Council’s primary source of funding is through equal contributions by the parties, 
which consist of the employer and the employees. The Council maintains liquidity by limiting capital and operational expenditure within the pre-approved budget. 
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The table below illustrates the Council’s exposure to liquidity risk from financial liabilities: 
 

2016 Carrying Amounts Contractual cash 

flow 

1-12 months 2-5 years Later than 5 

years 

 R R R R R 
Trade payables  4,535,716 4,535,716 4,535,716 - - 
Other financial liabilities  18,635,749 18,635,749 18,635,749 - - 

Total 23,171,464 23,171,464 23,171,464 - - 

 
 
 

     

2015      
Trade payables 2,108,664 2,108,664 2,108,664 - - 
Other financial liabilities  74,062,286 74,062,286 74,062,286 - - 

Total 76,170,950 76,170,950 76,170,950 - - 
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Interest rate risk 
 
The Council’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to cash in the current accounts and notice deposits held with the banks. 
 

Cash and cash equivalents 
2016 

R 

2015 

R 

Call deposits and current accounts 116,489,807 137,387,394 

Cash flow risk 
 
The Council manages its cash flow risk by aligning the monthly budget allocations to estimated monthly activity levels: 
 

Revenue 
2016 

R 

2015 

R 

Levies  12,329,170 12,279,980 
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Fair value rate risk 
 
The Council considers that the carrying amount of the trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents and payables approximate to their fair values. 
 

 
2016 

R 

2015 

R 

Trade receivables  7,835 - 

Cash and cash equivalents 116,489,807 137,387,394 

Trade payables  4,535,716 2,108,664 

 
Credit risk 
 
The Council has limited credit risk. The credit risk receivables relate to contractual rights that arose from the debt dually owed to the Council and these are 
monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that exposure to irrecoverable debts is minimal.  
 
With respect to credit risk arising from cash and cash equivalents, cash is placed with authorised financial institutions. The carrying amounts of the financial 
assets represent the maximum credit exposure. 
 
The maximum exposure at the reporting date was: 
 

 
2016 

R 

2015 

R 

Trade receivables 7,835 - 

Cash and cash equivalents 116,489,807 137,387,394 

 116,497,642 137,387,394 
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The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade receivables at the reporting date by major cluster was: 

 
2016 

R 

2015 

R 

Cash collateral provided  95,883 92,064 

Sundry receivables – refunds and SARS 52,112 962,048 

 147,995 1,054,112 

 
The Council has not pledged any of the receivables as security for any debt or other arrangements. 
 
Price risk 
 
The Council's exposure to price risk is non-existent as the Council does not trade goods or services to the public. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Foreign exchange risk 
 
The Council does not, in the normal course of its business, operate internationally and has 
limited exposure to foreign exchange transaction risk from various currency exposures. 
Transactions in the foreign currency are primarily overseas subsistence and travel allowances. 
The Council does not have such transactions to report in this financial year. 
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EDUCATION LABOUR RELATIONS COUNCIL

(Established in terms of the Labour Relations Act, 1995) (Act No.66 of 1995)

FIRST QUARTER

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

Approved

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

REVENUE

Levies Received 49 318 954       49 321 956             49 212 798     48 000 000                

Interest Received 4 946 709         5 696 330               7 275 662       5 915 798                  

Transfer from Reserves - Capital expenditure 26 768 508                

Transfers from Reserves - Operating expenditure -                    -                          -                  19 276 998                

54 265 663       55 018 286             56 488 460     99 961 304                

EMPLOYEE RELATED EXP

Collective Bargaining Services 1 934 704         1 999 216               8 471 265       9 758 476                  

Corporate Services 2 605 787         2 783 151               5 200 739       8 663 279                  

Executive Services 1 668 868         2 238 166               2 233 435       3 740 300                  

Dispute Management Services 2 607 991         1 700 451               1 934 339       2 839 018                  

Performane Bonuses -                    -                          -                  -                             

8 817 351         8 720 984               17 839 778     25 001 073                

OPEX

DISPUTE MANAGEMENT SERVICES 7 108 442         7 386 995               8 744 632      11 635 508                

Arbitration Cost -                    -                          5 084 639       -                             

Conciliation cost -                    -                          924 122          -                             

Administration 461 859            705 947                  174 539          719 087                     

Dispute Prevention 705 353            -                          551 885          501 000                     

Dispute Resolution 5 157 515         5 342 886               261 306          6 190 000                  

Training & Professional Development (DRS) 783 715            1 338 162               1 748 143       4 225 421                  

Expenditure Description
Expenditure Outcome
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EDUCATION LABOUR RELATIONS COUNCIL

(Established in terms of the Labour Relations Act, 1995) (Act No.66 of 1995)

FIRST QUARTER

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

Approved

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING SERVICES 15 063 245       14 034 203             14 986 687    27 059 761                

Bargaining Meeting 1 827 468         1 197 294               635 982          1 914 589                  

Task Team Meetings 7 838                20 216                    19 314            43 465                       

Administration 124 725            188 442                  285 028          418 317                     

Collective Agreements and Policies 177 475            43 565                    137 423          594 392                     

Personnel Administration Measures (PAM) -                    -                          -                  5 594 391                  

Full-time shop stewards 9 249 661         8 805 864               8 848 502       11 837 559                

Research and Development -                    -                          1 096 511       2 000 000                  

Annual General Meeting 223 619            338 723                  296 734          357 691                     

Executive Committee 122 485            127 564                  122 359          134 707                     

Audit Committee 87 284              78 525                    74 311            82 922                       

Finance Committee 42 293              16 203                    38 436            17 110                       

HR Sub Committee 88 667              65 720                    41 697            69 400                       

Strategic Planning & Budget Workshop 660 836            88 356                    277 681          93 304                       

Legal Sub Committee 8 025                193 129                  42 177            203 944                     

Accounting & Reporting(Parliament) 60 085              204 621                  132 248          216 080                     

Meetings with Parties 25 658              37 115                    135 580          39 193                       

Gauteng 453 047            374 865                  425 296          470 433                     

Kwa Zulu Natal 154 042            221 671                  232 533          493 796                     

Free State 239 519            278 991                  296 898          390 050                     

Eastern Cape 269 533            243 154                  309 440          293 309                     

Western Cape 150 987            222 322                  287 951          390 000                     

North West 228 348            305 219                  294 300          287 758                     

Mpumalanga 277 973            257 968                  265 306          308 666                     

Northren Cape 313 477            410 666                  353 334          429 196                     

Limpopo 270 202            314 012                  337 644          379 489                     

Expenditure Description
Expenditure Outcome
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EDUCATION LABOUR RELATIONS COUNCIL

(Established in terms of the Labour Relations Act, 1995) (Act No.66 of 1995)

FIRST QUARTER

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

Approved

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

 EXECUTIVE SERVICES 1 439 996         1 455 046               1 377 858      1 776 984                  

Internal Audit -                    -                          -                  150 000                     

Facilitation/Prevention Services -                    -                          -                  -                             

Administration 1 439 996         1 455 046               1 377 858       1 626 984                  

CORPORATE SERVICES 5 320 165         6 218 895               6 422 477      9 129 782                  

Media & Communications 292 346            329 192                  912 301          2 527 256                  

Information Communications Technology -                    -                          -                  155 600                     

Human Resources 1 444 886         1 848 270               1 457 446       1 602 350                  

Administration 1 091 114         1 556 459               1 052 306       2 002 470                  

Supply Chain Management 2 402 789         2 192 506               2 904 653       2 775 781                  

Financial, Accounting Services 89 031              292 467                  95 772            66 325                       

37 749 199       37 816 123             49 371 433     74 603 108                

CAPEX

Dispute Management Services -                    -                          -                  -                             

Collective Bargaining Services -                    -                          -                  430 000                     

Corporate Services 291 878            204 565                  3 539 911       24 610 396                

Supply Chain Management -                    -                          -                  -                             

Financial, Accounting Services -                    -                          -                  -                             

Executive Services -                    -                          -                  317 800                     

291 878            204 565                  3 539 911       25 358 196                

Total Annual Expenditure 38 041 077     38 020 688           52 911 344   99 961 304              

Net Surplus/(deficit) for the year 16 224 586       16 997 598             3 577 115       -                             

Expenditure Description
Expenditure Outcome


